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STATE OF WASHINGTON
OFFICE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Insurance Building, PO Box 43113 o Olympia, Washington 98504-3113 e (360) 902-0555

October 31, 2014

The Honorable Jay Inslee, Governor
Honorable Members of the Legislature
Citizens of the State

State of Washington

Olympia, Washington 98504

In accordance with Revised Code of Washington 43.88.027, the Office of Financial Management has
prepared this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the state of Washington for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014. Full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in
this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control established for this purpose, rests
with the state. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

The State Auditor has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the Washington state financial statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the
tinancial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Following the MD&A are the basic financial statements, including the government-wide financial statements,
the fund financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. The required supplementary
information, combining financial statements, individual fund schedules, and the statistical section complete
the CAFR.

Profile of Washington State

Washington state was created in 1889 by an enabling act of Congress. The state is located on the Pacific
Coast, in the northwestern corner of the continental United States, and comprises 71,303 square miles. Its
current population is 7.0 million. Washington is famous for its breathtakingly beautiful scenery and sharp
contrasts. On the west side of the state, high mountains rise above coastal waters. The forests of the Olympic
Peninsula are among the world’s rainiest places. The state’s coastline has hundreds of bays and inlets that
make excellent harbors, while in the eastern part, flat semi-desert land stretches for long distances without a
single tree.
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State of Washington

Washington’s location makes it a gateway for land, sea, and air travel to Alaska and Pacific Rim countries.
Ships from all parts of the world dock at Washington ports. Costco Wholesale Corporation, headquartered in
Issaquah, operates an international chain of membership warehouses. Microsoft, a global leader in the
computer software industry, makes its home in Redmond. Major internet retailer, Amazon.com, and
worldwide renowned coffee company, Starbucks, are both headquartered in Seattle. The Weyerhaeuser
Company, a major producer of wood and related products, is headquartered in Federal Way.

East of the Cascade Mountain range, farmers raise livestock and grow a variety of crops such as wheat,
potatoes, and tree fruits. Washington leads the nation in apple and hops production, makes world-class wine,
and produces large amounts of lumber, pulp, paper, and other wood products. Western Washington’s mild,
moist climate makes that region excellent for dairy farming and the production of flower bulbs.

GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

As established in the State Constitution, Washington state has Executive, Legislative, and Judicial branches of
government. The Executive Branch has nine elected officials: the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Secretary
of State, State Treasurer, State Auditor, Attorney General, Superintendent of Public Instruction, Insurance
Commissioner, and Commissioner of Public Lands. Thirty-nine agency heads are appointed by, and report to,
the Governor. Seventy-eight agency heads report to boards appointed, in whole or in part, by the Governor.
The Legislative Branch consists of the Senate (with forty-nine members) and the House of Representatives
(with ninety-eight members). The Judicial Branch consists of the State Supreme Court, the highest court in
the state, which has nine Justices. Every two years, three Justices are elected for six-year terms. A Chief
Justice is chosen from among the most senior Justices. The Judicial Branch also includes the state’s superior
courts, justices of the peace, and such inferior courts as the Legislature may provide.

TYPES OF SERVICES PROVIDED AND REPORTING ENTITY

The state provides a wide range of services that include education, transportation, environment and natural
resource protection, and social and health services.

The accompanying report includes all funds and subsidiary accounts of the primary government, Washington
state as legally defined, as well as its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which
the primary government is financially accountable or ones that have relationships with the state such that
exclusion would cause the state’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The determination of
“financial accountability” is based on criteria established in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. Note 1.A to the financial statements explains more fully component units
which are included in the reporting entity.

THE BUDGET CYCLE

Washington enacts budgets for a two-year cycle, beginning on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. By law, the
Governor must propose a biennial budget in December, the month before the Legislature convenes in regular
session. The biennial budget enacted by the Legislature can be modified in any legislative session through
changes to the original appropriations. Since the inception of annual legislative sessions in 1979, it has
become common for the Legislature to enact annual revisions to the state’s biennial budget. These revisions
are referred to as supplemental budgets.

Operating appropriations are generally made at the fund/account and agency level; however, in a few cases,
appropriations are made at the fund/account and agency/program level. Operating appropriations cover
either the entire biennium or a single fiscal year within the biennium. Capital appropriations are biennial and
are generally made at the fund/account, agency and project level. The legal level of budgetary control is at the
fund/account, agency and appropriation level, with administrative controls established at lower levels of
detail in certain instances.
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Washington State’s Economy and Revenue Outlook

SUMMARY

From the time the nation’s recession began, in December 2007, to its lowest point in February 2010,
Washington State lost almost 206,000 jobs, or about 6.9 percent of total nonfarm payroll employment. While
the state lagged the nation into this slowdown, local losses accelerated in late 2008 and, for the most part,
began to match national trends. By June 2009, the nation was officially out of recession and national
economic indicators were signaling a recovery in economic output. However, employment was noticeably
restrained as employers sought to increase output through productivity gains rather than by hiring additional
workers. Employment patterns were inconsistent throughout 2010 as the use of temporary Census workers in
the late spring and summer masked the below-average hiring trends in the remainder of the economy.
Employment growth turned positive in the last quarter of 2010 and has remained on a positive track since
though at a growth rate less than half the historic norm. Job growth advanced at a 2.5 percent annual pace in
2014, a marked improvement on the 1.4 percent rate in 2012 and 2.1 percent pace in 2013. Mid fiscal year
2014 marked an economic milestone as nonfarm employment, after a duration of 69 months, finally exceeded
its pre-recession peak. Because of Washington’s export-dependent economy, and the cautiously optimistic
Asian outlook, Washington is still expected to outpace the nation over the next several years in terms of job
and income growth.

It is expected that Washington’s economic expansion will build upon the diversity of the state’s industrial and
environmental foundations, whose elements include a vital export base; the presence of knowledge-based
industries such as information services, professional and business services, health services, and financial
services; and attractive natural attributes. All these elements should continue to support population growth.

Washington’s nonfarm payroll employment grew by 2.5 percent in fiscal year 2014, 2.1 percent in fiscal year
2013, 1.4 percent in fiscal year 2012, 0.6 percent in fiscal year 2011, and -3.9 percent in fiscal year 2010.
Throughout this span the aerospace industry was able to perform better than average despite weakness in the
global airline industry, thanks primarily to a long backlog of orders. Adding workers to address the
production difficulties with the 787, and increasing the delivery pace for the large backlog of orders in fiscal
year 2013 helped keep employment on the upswing. Total manufacturing employment grew 3.7 percent in
fiscal year 2013 as production schedules ramped up and a favorable dollar gave Washington products an
advantage in the international markets. With 787 production difficulties solved in late fiscal year 2013, and the
realignment of production and engineering operations across the country, the ramping down of aerospace
employment in fiscal year 2014 and further easing of payrolls are projected for the future.

Washington’s unemployment rate fell by 1 percentage point in fiscal year 2014, as a growing national
economy, rebounding housing markets, and moderating energy costs helped support the labor markets. As
the 2014 annual unemployment rate eased down to 6.5 percent from 7.5 percent in fiscal year 2013,
Washington’s jobless rate consistently tracked below the national average throughout this period.

Personal income grew 4 percent in fiscal year 2014, despite the below-average pace of hiring. Real personal
income — after factoring out inflation — grew by 2.7 percent in fiscal year 2014 after gaining 2.6 percent in
fiscal year 2013 and 2.7 percent in fiscal year 2012. In comparison, real personal income fell 3.1 percent in
tiscal year 2010.

Washington’s outlook for fiscal year 2015 is for moderate gains in economic growth. Nonfarm payroll

employment in Washington is forecasted to increase by 2.3 percent in fiscal year 2015. Personal income in
tiscal year 2015 is predicted to grow by 4.6 percent in current terms, and by 3.2 percent in real terms.
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General Fund-State revenues are forecasted to grow at an 8.2 percent rate in the 2015-17 biennium compared
to the 8.7 percent gain in the 2013-15 biennium. The expanding economy, moderate gains in hiring, and
recovering housing markets have had a positive effect on revenue growth though at a pace below overall
income growth. Further economic growth and a continued rebound in the housing market will keep revenues
growing at a moderate pace.

ECONOMIC CONDITION IN FISCAL YEAR 2014

Washington’s nonfarm payroll employment grew by 2.5 percent in fiscal year 2014, compared to the 1.7
percent growth in U.S. nonfarm payroll employment. The absolute increase in Washington’s nonfarm payroll
employment was 73,900 during fiscal year 2014. Personal income in Washington grew 4 percent, leading the
U.S. gain of 2.7 percent. Because Washington’s personal income had not fallen to the same degree as the
nation during the great recession, the rebound effect in Washington was somewhat lessened during the
subsequent recovery and expansion (i.e., the state did not have near as deep a hole from which to extract
itself). Real per capita income grew by 1.6 percent in Washington during fiscal year 2014, again leading the
nation which experienced a 0.7 percent gain.

Aerospace employment has long been an anchor for Washington’s manufacturing sector, so changes in
aerospace have an outsized impact. Even though aerospace employment did ratchet down a modest amount
in fiscal year 2010, employment growth from that point through the middle of fiscal year 2013 totaled 17,000
workers, or 21.2 percent. This was accomplished by ramping up of production schedules and adding an
additional assembly line to help boost aircraft deliveries. With more complete resolution to the 787
production difficulties in late fiscal year 2013 aerospace employment fell 1.5 percent in fiscal year 2014.

Manufacturing employment, other than aerospace grew by 2 percent in fiscal year 2014. Durable
manufacturing industries, which had experienced pullbacks in employment in fiscal year 2010, turned up in
fiscal year 2011 as the national economy and export market began to strengthen, and carried that momentum
into 2014 growing at a 2.2 percent annual clip. Nondurable manufacturing employment, which had declined
4.6 percent in fiscal year 2010, eased upward by 0.9 percent in fiscal year 2011, and also carried momentum as
demand for processed food and paper products solidified. Durable goods employment continued to grow in
fiscal year 2014 at a moderate 1.7 percent pace.

In comparative terms, employment in durable manufacturing in Washington grew by 0.5 percent in fiscal year
2014, while employment in durable manufacturing nationwide increased by a very similar 0.6 percent.
Manufacturing was formetly one of the few bright spots in the nation’s labor market. Employment in most
durable manufacturing industries, outside of aerospace, posted gains in Washington during fiscal year 2014.
Even employment in lumber and wood products, which had been very hard hit by the recession and housing
bust, posted solid gains thanks to the ongoing rebound in the housing markets.

Washington’s lumber industry is dependent upon local and national home building trends. The housing
market in Washington had begun to soften in fiscal year 2008, and the national markets had been weak since
the end of fiscal year 2007. The rebound in home building resulted in a 3.2 percent gain in wood products
employment in fiscal year 2014.

Employment in transportation equipment other than aerospace fell by 3.8 percent as demand for heavy
trucks, ships and boats softened. As aerospace employment eased, employment in primary and fabricated
metal products —major suppliers to acrospace — continued to grow by 1.3 percent in fiscal year 2014, despite
the more intense use of composite materials in newer aircraft. Machinery manufacturing employment also
increased 0.5 percent in fiscal year 2014 thanks to steady domestic and international demand. Computers and
electronic products jobs fell by 0.3 percent, while employment in other durable manufacturing was up by 3.1
petcent.
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Nondurable manufacturing employment in Washington increased by 1.6 percent in fiscal year 2014, a gain of
about 1,200 jobs. Nationally, nondurable manufacturing employment was unchanged over the same period.
In Washington, employment in food manufacturing grew 1.1 percent in fiscal year 2014 as a result of
continued growing demand in the export markets. Printing and paper products employment was essentially
unchanged in fiscal year 2014 as a result of soft national demand for magazines and newspapers and the
growing use of on-line information sources.

Washington’s non-manufacturing employment advanced 2.7 percent in fiscal year 2014. All major nonfarm
services sectors, including government, posted payroll gains for fiscal year 2014 with construction
employment outpacing the field with a growth of 6.9 percent.

The construction industry’s healthy gain in fiscal year 2014 was a result of continued strengthening in the
housing market as median house prices rose throughout most of the year and as the number of building
permits eased upwards. The housing market was bolstered by continued low mortgage interest rates which
were likely a major factor that helped spur demand for housing. The excess inventory of homes from the
housing bubble had been whittled down which helped return new home sales to a more historical norm while
existing home sales continued to post moderate gains.

For many years, employment growth in the information sector has relied almost exclusively on the strength of
software publishing. However in fiscal year 2010, after a run of 27 years, software employment fell 2.6
percent because of restructuring at Microsoft. The sector’s employment stabilized in the last half of fiscal year
2010 and began a slow up-turn in fiscal year 2011, growing 0.8 percent. Job gains in subsequent fiscal years
were 1.7 percent, 1.6 percent, and 4 percent in fiscal year 2014.

Wholesale trade grew by 3 percent in fiscal year 2014, and retail trade employment increased by 3.5 percent, a
characteristic job gain for this point in the economic recovery. There is a concern that this economic
expansion is creating an inordinate share of low paid and part-time work—retail trade being the center of that
concern.

Professional and business service jobs advanced by 2.5 percent in fiscal year 2014, as the great majority of
activities within the sector gained strength over the year. The only weak element in this sector was legal
services where many firms have reduced employment in operations and support functions in order to
improve efficiency.

Education and health services reported an increase of 2.7 percent during fiscal year 2014. There still remains
some uncertainty surrounding the Affordable Care Act which has likely cause some caution in this sector.
Leisure and hospitality services recorded a 4 percent increase as demand for food and beverage services
strengthened and as hotels and motels experienced higher occupancy rates. Even the public sector posted a
0.6 percent gain thanks primarily to growth in education payrolls.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The forecast for Washington state for fiscal year 2015 reflects the continuation of slow but steady
employment growth at both the state and national levels. According to the September 18, 2014, forecast by
the state Economic and Revenue Forecast Council, Washington’s nonfarm payroll employment is predicted
to increase by 2.3 percent in fiscal year 2015, four-tenths of a point quicker than that of the nation. Up until
the middle of fiscal year 2010, the economic recovery was characterized by an expansion of existing workers’
hours rather than new hiring. In addition, an aggressive cycle of productivity gains through the eatly period of
economic recovery also kept hiring at bay. With the end of the productivity surge in early 2011, employers
began to expand their payrolls to increase output in 2012. This pattern held through fiscal year 2014 and
should do so again in fiscal year 2015.
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Manufacturing employment in Washington is projected to continue its upward course in fiscal year 2015
though at a slow pace. The acrospace industry, which began paring jobs in 2014, is expected to continue
doing so in 2015. Even though the output of the 737 production lines has been accelerated, the realignment
and relocation of engineering and support activities has resulted in overall declining payrolls. An average of
2,000 fewer workers are expected to be employed in aerospace in fiscal year 2015. Durable manufacturing,
aside from the aerospace sector, is expected to grow by 4,000 jobs as business investment and exports boost
demand. As a result, primary and fabricated metals, and machinery and electrical equipment, are expected to
solidify their employment bases.

The wood products industry was hard hit by both the housing bubble and the slowdown in international
trade. But after five years of downward trending employment, the wood products sector began to hold its
own in fiscal year 2012 and expand through fiscal year 2014 as the nation’s multi-family market and increased
residential remodeling helped shore up demand for wood products. With the continued rebound in the
housing market, payroll gains of 4.9 percent are expected in fiscal year 2015 as demand for new apartments
and single-family homes strengthens. This will also carry into the construction sector.

Nondurable manufacturing gains should be modest in fiscal year 2015. Employment in food manufacturing is
expected to ease down by 2 percent. Employment in paper and paper products manufacturing is expected to
remain unchanged, while other nondurable manufacturing should increase by 3.9 percent.

In the other non-manufacturing sectors, the strongest employment growth in fiscal year 2015 is predicted in
professional and business services which is expected to expand 4.1 percent as business-to-business related
activity increases, particularly computer systems design and employment services. Wholesale trade and retail
trade jobs are expected to grow 2.8 percent and 2.4 percent respectively. The leisure and hospitality sector
should add 2.5 percent more jobs. Transportation, warehousing, and utilities jobs should gain 2.1 percent
thanks to the continued strength of international trade through Washington’s ports. Software publishing
should increase a modest 0.4 percent.

Education and health service jobs should also post a moderate 2.5 percent gain in fiscal year 2015. Health
care services have proven to be much less susceptible to economic downturns than other sectors of the
economy, although in this recovery employment gains have been below average. The coverage provided by
public and private insurers provides the economic buffer for this sector. The impact of the Affordable Care
Act is still an uncertainty in regards to employment trends.

Leisure and hospitality jobs are projected to grow 2.5 percent in fiscal year 2015. Travel and dining-out
activities were put on hold during the recession. Recent gains have been modest because of the slow growth
in overall employment and incomes. Because both overall income and employment are expected to post
moderate gains in 2015, so too should the leisure and hospitality sector.

Construction declined by almost 70,000 jobs between fiscal year 2008 and fiscal year 2012. After these four
consecutive years of decline the construction sector finally experienced modest rebounds in fiscal years 2013
and 2014 thanks to the emerging recovery in the housing markets. Payrolls are expected to increase by 6.4
percent in fiscal year 2015 because of the growing demand for rental apartments and moderate increases in
single family construction and remodeling.

Employment in financial activities will remain slow because of continued difficulties among state chartered
banks; many of whom were over-exposed in commercial building loans when the market weakened. Those
banks that survived the shake-out have been directed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to
strengthen their balance sheets, which in some ways has been detrimental to small business lending activity.
Payrolls are expected to post a 1 percent gain in fiscal year 2015.
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Federal government payrolls will likely remain unchanged in fiscal year 2015. Federal employment has been
mixed because of the easing of defense-related federal expenditures and budget conflicts. State and local
government employment should increase by 1.3 percent, primarily in local government and state education, as
the rebound in the labor markets and increases in consumer spending result in moderate gains in revenue
collections.

Washington’s personal income is expected to grow by 4.6 percent in fiscal year 2015, a bit quicker than the
4.4 percent growth in U.S. personal income for the same period. Employment is expected to maintain its
current rate of growth in fiscal year 2015, and as a result, the wage component of personal income should
grow at a 4.7 percent pace. Because of the declines in unemployment, slow though they may have been, the
use of unemployment compensation, an important component of personal income, is expected to decline by
over 32.1 percent in fiscal year 2015. Proprietors’ income is projected to grow at a 4.2 percent clip in fiscal
year 2015 as entrepreneurs capture gains as the economy grows. Dividends, interest, and rents will grow at a
3.7 percent pace as financial markets moderate from their extended recovery.

Major Initiatives

As Washington’s economy continues its slow recovery from the Great Recession, state revenue collections
are also rebounding. But revenue collections are growing at a much slower pace than after previous recessions
— and certainly not fast enough to meet growing demands for state services, let alone a Washington Supreme
Court mandate to increase funding for K-12 education.

Given these realities, the state faces significant fiscal challenges heading into its 2015—17 budget cycle. As of
September 2014, the Office of Financial Management was projecting a potential budget shortfall of $3 billion
or more for the 2015-17 biennium.

Washington, with its heavy reliance on sales taxes, was particularly hard hit by the Great Recession and the
toll it took on consumer confidence. And now, as the economy recovers, state revenue collections are not
keeping pace with the growth of the economy. This phenomenon has become more evident in recent years
and is the result of a variety of factors, such as the shift in consumer spending to untaxed services and online
purchases as well as tax cuts the state has enacted.

Washington Gov. Jay Inslee and the Legislature will face a number of unique budget challenges for the 2015—
17 biennium and beyond.

Under legislation approved in 2012, Washington became the only state in the nation required to pass a budget
that balances spending against anticipated revenue over a four-year period. To this end, the Legislature
created a State Budget Outlook Work Group to develop longer-term revenue and expenditure outlooks. The
work group is composed of members from the Office of Financial Management, Legislative Evaluation and
Accountability Program, Office of the State Treasurer, Economic and Revenue Forecast Council, Caseload
Forecast Council, and legislative budget committees.

Meanwhile, the state continues to struggle with meeting the requirements of the state Supreme Court’s 2012
McCleary ruling that for years the state has failed to meet its constitutional “paramount duty” to amply fund
basic education. Under that ruling, the state will need to increase K-12 spending by more than $3 billion over
the next four years.

The state made progress in the 2013—15 budget toward meeting its basic education funding obligation, but
not enough progress to satisfy the court. In September 2014, the court found the state in contempt for failing
to produce a long-term basic education funding plan and threatened sanctions if such a plan is not in place by
the end of the 2015 legislative session.
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In the face of these fiscal challenges, Gov. Inslee has emphasized that the state’s number one priority is
revitalizing Washington’s economy and building a 21st century workforce. “To do that,” he says, “we must
start with a strong commitment to education — and we must ensure that our investments get results.”

In developing his recommendations for the 2015-17 budget, Gov. Inslee’s priorities are to meet the
requirements of the McCleary decision, protect the most vulnerable, ensure public safety and address a
backlog of public employee compensation issues.

BETTER MANAGEMENT OF STATE GOVERNMENT

Washington is building on its history as a leader in adapting proven private-sector principles to state
government. Gov. Inslee’s Results Washington initiative, launched in 2013, is a groundbreaking, cross-agency
effort to focus on key goals in education, the economy, environment, health, safety and government
efficiency. By setting clear objectives and continually tracking results, the state will be better equipped to
engage its employees, partners and the public in building a healthier, better-educated and more prosperous
Washington.

A key tenet of this effort is transparency and accountability. Gov. Inslee meets monthly with state agency
directors to discuss progress, challenges and next steps. The meetings, called Results Reviews, are streamed
live over the Internet and broadcast statewide on cable TV. Goals, improvement strategies and data sets are
frequently updated online at https://data.results.wa.gov.

Underlying much of this improvement work is Lean, a management philosophy that has proven highly
effective at improving efficiency and customer focus in the health care, aerospace, retail and other industry
sectors. Lean is increasingly being put to use in government, from the city to federal levels. It encourages
employee problem-solving. Lean efforts have already helped the state and its customers avoid millions of
dollars in costs and significantly improved customer service. A few examples:

e By sharply cutting wait time for reconsideration of audit findings, the Department of Labor and
Industries saved employers an estimated $1.7 million in interest costs.

e The Department of Social and Health Services streamlined a widely used personnel form and various
processes, eliminating the need for 8,000 approval signatures and saving 2,133 hours of staff time
each month.

e Consolidated Technology Services automated a monthly report about service desk workload so a
manual process that used to take 24 to 30 hours of staff time every month takes minutes. The saved
staff time is now used on other work, including direct customer service.

e The Department of Transportation eliminated an 8.5-month backlog of collision data reports. Fully
analyzed collision records — used by insurers and road engineers, and for law enforcement emphasis
patrols — are now processed in five days.

Results Washington has also recruited more than 200 Lean partners, including dozens from some of the
state’s largest corporations and nonprofits. At no cost to taxpayers, these partners have provided valuable
training, advice and guidance to thousands of state employees, helping them learn and use Lean. Results
Washington has leveraged this help by pairing partners with state employees who take part in a revolving,
one-year Lean fellowship program.
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EDUCATION

To meet the state’s obligations under McCleary, the Governor and the Legislature adopted a number of
reforms in the 2013—15 budget, providing $1 billion of new funding for the state’s schools. The state’s two-
year budget:

e Increased funding to school districts for materials, supplies and operating costs by $432 million.

e Put an additional $132 million toward pupil transportation to fully fund the state’s obligation.

e Added $143 million to the state’s Learning Assistance Program to increase the number of
instructional hours provided from 1.5 hours to 2.4 hours per week per funded student.

e Provided $104 million to reduce kindergarten and first-grade class sizes for high-poverty schools and
$90 million to expand full-day kindergarten in high-poverty schools.

The 2013-15 budget also provided additional funding to increase instructional hours and graduation
requirements for students in grades 9 to 12, improve bilingual instruction, and extend new teacher mentoring.

In addition, the 2013—15 budget was passed with no tuition increases in the public higher education sector,
bringing relief to thousands of students and families across the state. The state continued to fund a robust
student financial aid program for low-income students through the State Need Grant and College Bound
Scholarship programs. The state also expanded enrollments for computer science, engineering and aerospace
training,

HEALTH CARE

Access to health care has increased dramatically in Washington since the 2010 passage of the federal Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act, which gave individuals and small businesses a means to choose
affordable, high-quality health insurance coverage. About 150,000 people have been enrolled for private
insurance through the state’s health insurance exchange — Washington Healthplanfinder. Washington also
opted to expand its Medicaid program under the Affordable Care Act, providing coverage to 400,000 newly
eligible adults. As a result, during a six-month span the percentage of Washington residents without health
insurance fell from 16 percent to 11 percent.

Besides improving access to health care, the state has undertaken a number of initiatives to drive down costs
and improve people’s health.

For example, the state is working to integrate mental health and substance abuse treatment in primary medical
care. And, under legislation passed in 2014, the state will begin implementing an all-payer claims database that
will dramatically improve the transparency of health care costs.

The Governor also launched his Healthiest Next Generation initiative, a public-private partnership that will
develop strategies to reduce obesity in children through such avenues as promoting breastfeeding, supporting
schools in providing more nutritious meal and drink options, and encouraging children to be more active.

The Governor’s Aging Summit was convened to help the state prepare for the needs of an aging population.
The summit generated numerous policy recommendations, such as the need for key investments in long-term
care and nursing homes. The summit also resulted in legislation to implement the Community First Choice
Option and develop an Alzheimer’s state plan.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Gov. Inslee, through his “Washington Competes” agenda, continues to revitalize the state’s economy, create
jobs and ensure we have workers with the skills to fill those jobs. In pursuit of that agenda, he secured
funding for the Department of Commerce to hire specialists dedicated to growing specific areas of our state’s
economy, including the life sciences and global health, information and communications technology, clean
technology, maritime and military sectors. The state created a new Work Start program to match education
and workforce training with employer needs, a key business recruitment and retention tool. The state is also
continuing work on a one-stop Web portal for businesses to simplify their interactions with state
government. The Governor championed and signed legislation ensuring the next generation of airplanes will
be built in Washington.

ENVIRONMENT AND ENERGY

Gov. Inslee continues to engage lawmakers in a bipartisan discussion on how to tackle the issue of carbon
pollution, a cornerstone of his agenda. In April, the Governor signed Executive Order 14-04 “Washington
Carbon Pollution Reduction and Clean Energy Action.”

The executive order created the Carbon Emission Reduction Taskforce to provide recommendations on the
design and implementation of a carbon emission limits and market mechanisms program for Washington. It
also directs:

e The Department of Transportation to develop an action plan to advance the development and use of
electric vehicles; identify and implement opportunities to increase statewide investment in
multimodal transportation; and develop a long-range statewide transportation plan to boost
efficiency and cut both costs and greenhouse gas emissions.

e The Department of Commerce to develop recommendations for a new state program to support
research institutions, utilities and businesses to develop, demonstrate and deploy new renewable
energy and energy efficiency programs. In addition, the agency is to develop a new state program to
improve the energy performance of public and private buildings.

e The Office of Financial Management to analyze the technical feasibility and economic impact of
adopting a clean transportation fuel standard that reduces fuels carbon intensity over time.

e All state agencies to develop recommendations for improving efficiencies and reducing emissions
from state government operations.

Washington is experiencing rapid changes in how crude oil is moving through rail corridors and over
Washington waters, which creates new safety and environmental risks. As petroleum shipments from Alaska
decline, transport of crude oil from the Bakken region via rail is increasing. The Legislature directed state
agencies to assess the risk and develop recommendations to increase public safety and improve oil spill
prevention and response readiness. Gov. Inslee issued a directive requiring state agencies to provide initial
findings and recommendations by October 1, 2014.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to Washington state for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

12
Letter of Transmittal



State of Washington

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR, with contents conforming to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Washington state has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the past 27 years. The Office of Financial Management considers this report

to be in conformity with the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements, and will submit it to the
GFOA.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professionalism and dedication
demonstrated by the financial and management personnel of each state agency and institution of higher
education and the Office of Financial Management. This CAFR reflects the Governor’s commitment to the
Legislature, the citizens of Washington state, and the financial community to maintain financial statements in
conformance with the highest standards of financial accountability.

Sincerely,
/s/

David Schumacher
Director
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Washington State Auditor
Troy Kelley

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

October 31, 2014

The Honorable Jay Inslee
Governor, State of Washington

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate discretely presented component units
and remaining fund information of the State of Washington, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Department of Retirement Systems, Local
Government Investment Pool, University of Washington, and the funds managed by the State
Investment Board. Those financial statements represent part or all of the total assets, net
position, and revenues or additions of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund
information as follows:

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021 « Olympia, Washington 98504-0021 « (360) 902-0370 « TDD Relay (800) 833-6388



Percent of

Percent of Total

Percent of Net Revenues/
Opinion Unit Total Assets  Position Additions
Governmental Activities 13.6% 23.6% 9.0%
Business-Type Activities 75.3% 100% 36.7%
Higher Education Special Revenue Fund 53.1% 53.4% 50.3%
Higher Education Endowment Fund 96.4% 96.4% 100.0%
Higher Education Student Services Fund 68.9% 72.1% 82.1%
Workers” Compensation Fund 95.5% 100% 33.1%
Guaranteed Education Tuition Program Fund 88.1% 100% 72.8%
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component
Units and Remaining Fund Information 92.0% 93.9% 71.4%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the above
mentioned entities and funds, are based solely on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Department of Retirement Systems, Local Government Investment Pool, University of
Washington, and the funds managed by the State Investment Board were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the State’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the State’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the State of
Washington, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where



applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Matters of Emphasis

As explained in Note 1.D.1, the financial statements include pension trust fund investments
valued at $29.6 billion which comprise 26.9% of total assets and 28.9% of net position of the
aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information. The fair values
of these investments have been estimated by management in the absence of readily determinable
fair values. Management's estimates are based on information provided by the fund managers or,
in the case of investments in partnerships, the general partners. Our opinion was not modified
with respect to this matter.

As described in Note 2, during the year ended June 30, 2014, the State has implemented the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension
Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 and Statement No. 70, Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 25 through 37, budgetary comparison
information on pages 165 through 170, information on postemployment benefits other than
pensions on page 182, infrastructure modified approach information on pages 183 through 186
and pension trust fund information on pages 171 through 182 be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The accompanying information
listed as combining financial statements and individual fund schedules on pages 189 through 241
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. This information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to



prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed
as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The information identified in the table of contents as the introductory and statistical sections is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the State. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated October
31, 2014, on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. That report will be issued under separate cover in the State’s
Single Audit Report. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the State’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sincerely,

T ey X Sl g

TROY KELLEY
STATE AUDITOR
OLYMPIA, WA
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State of Washington

Management’s Discussion &
Analysis

As managers of the state of Washington, we offer this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. We present this
information in conjunction with the information included
in our letter of transmittal, which can be found preceding
this narrative, and with the state’s financial statements,
which follow. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

e Total assets and deferred outflows of the state of
Washington exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
by $22.93 billion (reported as net position). Of this
amount, $(7.92) billion was reported as "unrestricted
net position." A negative balance indicates that no
funds were available for discretionary purposes.

e The state of Washington’s governmental funds
reported a combined ending fund balance of $13.41
billion, an increase of 7.9 percent compared with the
prior year as restated.

e While the state’s capital assets increased by $1.03
billion and total bond debt increased by $1.12 billion
during the current fiscal year, the state’s net investment
in capital assets is $20.44 billion.

Overview of the Financial
Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the state of Washington’s basic financial
statements, which include three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The
focus is on both the state as a whole (government-wide)
and the major individual funds. The dual perspectives
allow the reader to address relevant questions, broaden a
basis for compatison (year-to-year or government-to-
government), and enhance the state’s accountability.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the state of
Washington’s finances, in a manner similar to a private
sector business.

Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net Position
presents information on all of the state of Washington’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported
as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the state of Washington is improving
or deteriorating,

Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities presents
information showing how the state’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the undetlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses atre
reported in this statement for some items that will result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave). The Statement of
Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of
various activities (including governmental, business-type,
and component unit). This is intended to summarize and
simplify the reader’s analysis of the revenues and costs of
various state activities and the degree to which activities
are subsidized by general revenues.

Both of these government-wide financial statements
distinguish functions of the state of Washington that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of
their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities).

The governmental activities of the state of Washington
include education, human services, transportation, natural
resources, adult corrections, and general government.

The business-type activities of the state of Washington
include the workers’ compensation and unemployment
compensation programs, as well as Washington’s lottery,
the Guaranteed Education Tuition Program (GET), and
various higher education student services such as housing

and dining,

The government-wide financial statements can be found
on pages 40-43 of this report.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a group of related accounts used to maintain
control over resources that are segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The state of Washington, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the state can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to
account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial ~ statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on fund balances at the end
of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a  government’s  near-term  financing
requitements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than
that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for three major funds and an aggregate total for
all nonmajor funds. The state’s major governmental funds
are the General Fund, Higher Education Special Revenue
Fund, and the Higher Education Endowment TFund.
Individual fund data for the state’s nonmajor
governmental funds are provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The
governmental fund financial statements can be found on
pages 46-49 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The state of Washington maintains
two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Internal service funds represent an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the state of Washington’s various functions. The
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state of Washington uses internal service funds to account
for general services such as motor pool, central stores, data
processing services, risk management, employee health
insurance, and printing services. Because internal service
funds predominately benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same
type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, but in greater detail. The proprietary fund
financial statements provide separate information for the
Workers’  Compensation ~ Fund, = Unemployment
Compensation Fund, the Higher Education Student
Setvices Fund, and the Guaranteed Education Tuition
Program Fund, which are considered to be major funds, as
well as an aggregated total for all nonmajor enterprise
funds.

The internal service funds ate combined for presentation
purposes. Individual fund data for the state’s nonmajor
proprietary funds are provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report. The proprietary fund
financial statements can be found on pages 50-59 of this
report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for
resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the
state of Washington’s own programs. Washington’s
fiduciary funds include state administered pension plans.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds. Individual fund data for the
state’s fiduciary funds are provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report. The
fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages
60-61 of this report.

Component Units. Component units that are legally
separate from the state and primarily serve or benefit those
outside the state are discretely presented. They are either
financially accountable to the state, or have relationships
with the state such that exclusion would cause the state’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
state discretely reports four major component units, the
Valley Medical Center, Northwest Hospital, the
Washington State Public Stadium Authority and the
Health Benefit Exchange, as well as four nonmajor
component units. Refer to Note 1 on pages 69-70 for
more detailed information. Individual fund data for the
state’s nonmajor component units are provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The component unit financial statements can be found on
pages 62-65 of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 67-161
of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

In addition to this discussion and analysis, this report also
presents required supplementary information on budgetary
comparisons, pension plans and other postemployment

benefits information, and infrastructure assets reported
using the modified approach.

Required supplementary information can be found on
pages 165-186 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier are presented
immediately following the required supplementary
information. Combining financial statements and
individual fund schedules can be found on pages 189-241
of this report.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
Statement of Net Position
(in millions of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

ASSETS
Current and other assets S 21,468 S 19,999 S 24,394 S 22,119 S 45,862 S 42,118
Capital assets 36,375 35,435 2,850 2,761 39,225 38,196

Total assets 57,843 55,434 27,244 24,880 85,087 80,314
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - - 15 16 15 16
LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 5,043 4,585 1,190 912 6,233 5,497
Long-term liabilities outstanding 25,994 24,508 29,947 28,842 55,941 53,350

Total liabilities 31,037 29,093 31,137 29,754 62,174 58,847
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2 - - - 2 -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 19,816 19,706 625 740 20,441 20,446
Restricted 6,589 6,524 3,815 3,469 10,404 9,993
Unrestricted 399 111 (8,318) (9,067) (7,919) (8,956)

Total net position S 26,804 S 26,341 S (3,878) S (4,858) S 22,926 $ 21,483

Government-wide Financial
Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a
useful indicator of a government’s financial position. For
the state of Washington, total assets and deferred outflows
of resources exceed liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $22.93 billion at June 30, 2014, as compared
to $21.48 billion as reported at June 30, 2013.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The largest portion of the state’s net position (89.2 percent
for fiscal year 2014 as compared to 95.2 percent for fiscal
year 2013) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, equipment, and intangible assets), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The state of Washington uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending.

Although the state of Washington’s investment in its

capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
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provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the state of Washington’s net position (45.4
percent for fiscal year 2014 as compared to 46.5 percent
for fiscal year 2013) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The
remaining balance of $(7.92) billion represents unrestricted
net position. The state’s overall negative balance in
unrestricted net position is caused by deficits in business-
type activities.

In governmental activities, net position increased from
$26.34 billion in fiscal year 2013 to $26.80 billion in fiscal
year 2014. The increase reflects increases in grants and tax
revenues that outpaced the increases in expenses.

In business-type activities, the majority of the deficit is
caused by the workers’ compensation program that
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provides time-loss, medical, disability, and pension
payments to qualifying individuals who sustain work-
related injuries or develop occupational diseases as a result
of their required work activities.

The main benefit plans of the workers’ compensation
program are funded on rates that will keep the plans
solvent in accordance with recognized actuarial principles.
The supplemental pension cost-of-living adjustments
(COLAs) granted for time-loss and disability payments,
however, are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. By statute,
the state is only allowed to collect enough revenue to fund
the current COLA payments.

As previously mentioned, the state’s activities are divided
between governmental and business-type. The majority of
support for governmental activities comes from taxes and
intergovernmental grants, while business-type activities are
supported primarily through user charges.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

STATE OF WASHINGTON
Changes in Net Position
(in millions of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

REVENUES
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 5,850 S 5,749 S 6,416 S 6,166 S 12,266 $ 11,915

Operating grants and contributions 13,240 12,027 326 870 13,566 12,897

Capital grants and contributions 1,066 997 - - 1,066 997
General revenues:

Taxes 17,849 17,072 22 23 17,871 17,095

Interest and investment earnings (loss) 621 397 1,618 523 2,239 920

Total revenues 38,626 36,242 8,382 7,582 47,008 43,824
EXPENSES
General government (1,607) (1,537) - - (1,607) (1,537)
Education - K-12 (8,914) (8,238) - - (8,914) (8,238)
Education - Higher education (6,910) (6,992) - - (6,910) (6,992)
Human services (15,052) (13,181) - - (15,052) (13,181)
Adult corrections (911) (844) - - (911) (844)
Natural resources and recreation (1,137) (1,096) - - (1,137) (1,096)
Transportation (2,400) (2,379) - - (2,400) (2,379)
Interest on long-term debt (938) (955) - (938) (955)
Workers' compensation - - (3,142) (3,330) (3,142) (3,330)
Unemployment compensation - - (1,380) (1,983) (1,380) (1,983)
Higher education student services - - (2,080) (1,927) (2,080) (1,927)
Washington's lottery - - (463) (437) (463) (437)
Guaranteed education tuition program - - (185) 105 (185) 105
Other business-type activities - - (133) (126) (133) (126)

Total expenses (37,869) (35,222) (7,383) (7,698) (45,252) (42,920)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenses before contributions

to endowments and transfers 757 1,020 999 (116) 1,756 904
Contributions to endowments 66 63 - - 66 63
Transfers 94 114 (94) (114) - -
Increase (decrease) in net position 917 1,197 905 (230) 1,822 967
Net position - July 1, as restated 25,887 25,144 (4,783) (4,628) 21,104 20,516
Net position - June 30 S 26,804 S 26,341 S (3,878) S  (4,858) S 22,926 S 21,483
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Governmental  Activities. Governmental activities
resulted in an increase in the state of Washington’s net
position of $916.8 million. A number of factors

contributed to the increase:

e Tax revenues increased by $777.0 million in fiscal year
2014 as compared to fiscal year 2013 reflecting positive
growth in the economy. Sales and use taxes reported an
increase of $654.8 million. Sales and use taxes are the
main tax revenue for governmental activities. Real
estate excise tax revenue increased by $71.7 million.
Real estate excise taxes are levied on the sale of real
estate. These tax revenue increases reflect the slowly
rebounding economy, recovering housing markets, and
improving employment picture in Washington.

e Charges for services increased by $100.4 million in
fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013. Increases
in fiscal year 2014 as compared with fiscal year 2013
included $104.1 million in the state’s federally approved
hospital safety net assessment, $43.2 million in timber
sales, $36.7 million in motor vehicle license and
operator license revenues, and $14.9 million in tolling
revenues.

These increases were offset by a decrease of $104.4
million in fiscal year 2014 related to liquor distributor
license fees which were assessed in fiscal year 2013 as a
one-time charge when the state privatized liquor retail
sales and distribution. Tuition and fee revenues at
higher education institutions held steady in fiscal year
2014 compared with fiscal year 2013.

e Operating grants and contributions grew by $1.21
billion in fiscal year 2014 compared with 2013 and was
matched with an increase in human services expenses.
The increases in both grant revenue and human
services expenditures are largely due to the state
expansion of its Medicaid program under the
Affordable Care Act providing coverage to 400,000
newly eligible adults.

e Expenses grew by $676.0 million for K-12 education in
2014 as compared to fiscal year 2013. The state is
working to meet the requirements of the state Supreme
Court’s 2012 McCleary ruling to meet its constitutional
duty to fund basic education.

Business-Type Activities. Business-type  activities
increased the state of Washington’s net position by $905.6
million. ~ Workers’  compensation,  unemployment
compensation, and guaranteed education tuition activities
contributed to the increase. Key factors contributing to the
operating results of business-type activities are:
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e The workers’ compensation activity increase in net
position in fiscal year 2014 was $240.4 million
compared to a decrease of $925.9 million in fiscal year
2013. Premium revenue increased by $76.9 million as a
result of an increase in the number of hours reported
by employers, a mid-year premium rate increase, and
an increase in the number of hours reported by
businesses in higher rate classes. Claim costs decreased
by $204.1 million in fiscal year 2014 compared with
fiscal year 2013 reflecting a reduction in the number of
time-loss claims. Nonoperating investment income
increased by $896.7 million due predominately to a net
increase in realized and unrealized gains on debt
securities. The workers’ compensation portfolio is 84.9
percent debt securities.

e The unemployment compensation activity reported an
operating income in fiscal year 2014 of $272.6 million,
compared to $174.3 in fiscal year 2013. Washington’s
unemployment insurance program is an experience-
based system with the largest part of an individual
employer’s tax rate being based on the employer’s
layoff experience over the past four years. The
economic recovery in the state has stabilized
employment and resulted in a decline in
unemployment insurance benefits of $602.9 million in
fiscal year 2014 over fiscal year 2013. The decrease in
benefit costs was the result of a decline in both the
number of claims and the duration of the claims. The
unemployment rate for the state for June 2014 was 5.4
percent, down from 7.0 percent in June 2013, and the
insured rate declined to 1.8 percent in fiscal year 2014
from 2.2 percent in fiscal year 2013. While the state’s
unemployment insurance premiums are experienced
based and the unemployment rate is declining,
premium revenue increased by 3.1 percent reflecting a
growing workforce and higher taxable wage base. The
$545.5 million decline in federal aid also reflects the
decrease in the unemployment rate.

e The Guaranteed Education Tuition (GET) program
reported an increase in net position of $322.1 million in
spite of the fact that the number of tuition units sold
dropped for the third straight year. Two factors
contributed to the increase in net position and
simultaneously made other long-term investment
options more attractive to customers resulting in the
decline in the number of tuition units sold. First,
investment returns were 16.4 percent in fiscal year 2014
compared with 9.6 percent in fiscal year 2013.
Secondly, tuition did not increase at state universities
for the second year in a row. Since the pay-out value of
a tuition unit is based on in-state undergraduate resident
tuition and fees at the state’s highest priced public
university, the GET payout value remained unchanged.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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The slow tuition growth over the past two years
combined with positive investment results improved
GET’s funded status to 106 percent at June 30, 2014.

The remaining business-type activities reported
relatively proportional increases in both operating
revenues and expenses when compared to the prior

year.

Revenues by Source: Governmental Activities
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Revenues by Source: Business-Type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the State’s
Funds

As noted earlier, the state of Washington uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. As previously discussed, the focus
of the state of Washington’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
fund balances. Such information is useful in assessing the
state of Washington’s financing requirements.

Adjustments to Beginning Fund Balances. As
described in Note 2 to the financial statements on pages 80
and 81, beginning fund balances of governmental funds
were adjusted to correct prior period activity.

Fund Balances. At June 30, 2014, the state’s
governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $13.41 billion. Of this amount, $2.49 billion or
18.6 percent is nonspendable, either due to its form or

legal constraints, and $4.42 billion or 33.0 percent is
restricted for specific programs by external constraints,
constitutional provisions or contractual obligations. An
additional $5.28 billion or 39.4 percent of total fund
balance has been committed to specific purposes.
Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless approved by the Legislature. An additional $880.0
million or 6.6 petcent of total fund balance has been
assigned to specific purposes by management.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the state
of Washington. As noted in the table below, fund balance
improved as a result of operations by $443.5 million in
fiscal year 2014, as compared to a $375.0 million gain in
fiscal year 2013. Increased revenues from taxes and federal
grants-in-aid and concerted effort to hold the line on
spending were the key contributing factors. Assigned fund
balance of $880.0 million is reported for fiscal year 2014
and relates to certain accrued and non-cash revenues
which are not considered by management to be available

for budgetary purposes.

REVENUES

Taxes

Federal grants
Investment revenue (loss)
Other

Total

EXPENDITURES
Human services
Education
Other

Total

Net transfers in (out)
Other financing sources

Net increase (decrease) in fund balance

STATE OF WASHINGTON
General Fund
(in millions of dollars)

Difference

Fiscal Year Increase

2014 2013

(Decrease)

$ 16,008 S 15,295 $ 713

10,226 8,780 1,446
7 (17) 24

614 644 (30)
26,855 24,702 2,153
14,920 13,235 1,685
9,754 9,115 639
1,460 1,392 68
26,134 23,742 2,392
(447) (716) 269
170 131 39

$ 444 $ 375 $ 69

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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General Fund expenditures continue to be concentrated in
services and programs most vital to citizens — primarily
human services and public education.

In addition to the General Fund, the state reports the
Higher Education Special Revenue and the Higher
Education Endowment Funds as major governmental
funds. Significant changes are as follows:

e  The change in net position of the Higher Education
Special Revenue Fund in fiscal year 2014 was $140.6
million compared to $347.5 million in fiscal year 2013.
The decline in fiscal year 2014 was largely due to a
decline in revenue from charges for services of 4.0
percent combined with a 2.8 percent increase in
expenditures.

e The fund balance for the Higher Education
Endowment Fund increased by $6.8 million in fiscal
year 2014. An overall net increase in fund balance of
$407.8 million from current year activity was offset by
a correction of a prior period accounting error which
decreased fund balance by $401.1 million. Fiscal year
2014 reported an increase of $148.7 million in
investment earnings.

Proprietary Funds. The state of Washington’s proprietary
funds provides the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
Significant changes are as follows:

e The Workers’ Compensation Fund reported an
increase in net position of $240.4 million in fiscal year
2014. Operating revenues increased by $83.0 million
and operating expenses decreased by $187.1 million as
compared to fiscal year 2013. As previously reported,
operating revenues increased due to an increase in
reported hours in higher rate classes and claims
expense decreased due to a reduction in the number of
time-loss claims. Investment income increased $896.7
million over fiscal year 2013 due to an increase in net
realized and unrealized capital gains.

e Washington’s Unemployment Compensation Fund
reported an increase in net position of $345.3 million.
As reported previously, premium revenue increased
reflecting a growing workforce and higher taxable wage
base. Unemployment benefit claims expense decreased
by $602.9 million in fiscal year 2014 as compated to
2013 and federal aid decreased by $545.5 million over
the same period. The decreases in both benefit claims
and federal aid ate consistent with the decline in the
state’s unemployment rate.
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e The Guaranteed Education Tuition (GET) Program
Fund reported an increase in net position of $322.1
million in fiscal year 2014. As previously reported, the
increase is due primarily to strong investment returns
and the fact that tuition did not increase at the state’s
universities for the second straight year.

e The Higher Education Student Services Fund and the
nonmajor enterprise funds reported activity fairly
consistent with the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary
Highlights

Differences between the original budget of the General
Fund and the final amended budget reflect increases in
mandatory costs driven by rising caseloads and school
enrollment as well as other high priority needs. Changes
to estimates are summarized as follows:

e Estimated biennial resources increased by $1.18 billion
over the course of the first year of the biennium. The
major increase in estimated resources is reported in
federal grants-in-aid reflecting additional funding
available to cover state programs.

e Appropriated expenditure authority increased by
$894.2 million over the first fiscal year of the biennium
to address increases in mandatory and high priority
programs. The major increases in appropriation
authority were in human services and education. The
availability of additional federal funding, rising
caseloads, and high priority needs were the main
drivers of the increases.

The state did not overspend its legal spending authority for
the 2013-2015 biennium. Actual General Fund revenues
and expenditures were 49.1 and 48.2 percent of final
budgeted resources and appropriations, respectively, for
the first fiscal year of the 2013-2015 biennium.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Capital Assets, Infrastructure, and
Bond Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The state of Washington’s investment in
capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2014, totaled $39.23 billion (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, infrastructure, museum and historical
collections,  buildings and  other improvements,
furnishings, equipment, and intangible assets, as well as
construction in progress.

Washington’s fiscal year 2014 investment in capital assets,
net of current year depreciation, increased $1.03 billion
over fiscal year 2013, including increases to the state’s
transportation infrastructure of $777.4 million. The state’s
construction in progress includes both new construction
and major improvements to state capital facilities and
infrastructure.  Remaining commitments on these
construction projects total $2.72 billion.

Additional information on the state of Washington’s
capital assets can be found in Note 6 beginning on page
110 of this report.

Infrastructure. The state uses the modified approach for
reporting  selected infrastructure assets. The modified
approach requires that the state meet certain requirements
regarding the inventory and maintenance of eligible capital
assets, including condition assessments. Under the
modified approach, assets are not depreciated and certain
maintenance and preservation costs associated with those
assets are expensed. Assets accounted for under this
approach include approximately 20,692 lane miles of
pavement, 3,286 bridges, and 48 highway safety rest areas.
Infrastructure asset categories are assessed on a two year
cycle, cither on a calendar year or fiscal year basis.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
(in millions of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land S 2,480 S 2,388 S 61 S 61 S 2,541 S 2,449
Transportation infrastructure
and other assets not depreciated 22,585 21,805 5 5 22,590 21,810
Buildings 7,702 7,610 2,410 1,988 10,112 9,598
Furnishings, equipment, and
intangible assets 1,513 1,480 190 182 1,703 1,662
Other improvements and infrastructure 1,189 1,218 80 83 1,269 1,301
Construction in progress 906 934 104 442 1,010 1,376
Total $ 36375 $ 35435 $ 2850 $ 2,761 S 39,225 $ 38,196

The state’s goal is to maintain 90 percent of pavements, 95
percent of bridges, and 95 percent of safety rest areas at a
condition level of fair or better. The condition of these
assets, along with the rating scales for pavements, bridges,
rest areas, and additional detail comparing planned to
actual preservation and maintenance spending are available
in the required supplementary information beginning on

page 183.

The most recent pavements condition assessment indicates
that 92.8 percent of pavements were in fair or better
condition. The condition of pavements has remained
steady in the last three assessment periods, averaging 92.2
percent in fair or better condition. For fiscal year 2014,
actual maintenance and preservation expenditures were

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

16.9 percent higher than planned, and over the past five
fiscal years, the actual expenditures were 3.1 percent lower
than planned.

The most recent bridge condition assessment indicates that
91.4 percent of bridges were in good or fair condition. The
condition of bridges has declined over the last three
assessment periods, averaging 94.8 percent in good or fair
condition. For fiscal year 2014, the actual maintenance and
preservation expenditures were 5.3 percent lower than
planned, and over the past five fiscal years, the actual
expenditures were 9.7 percent lower than planned.
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Bond Debt. At the end of fiscal year 2014, the state of
Washington had general obligation bond debt outstanding
of $18.96 billion, an increase of 4.1 percent from fiscal year
2013. This debt is secured by a pledge of the full faith and
credit of the state. Additionally, the state had authorized
$6.48 billion general obligation debt that remains unissued.

General obligation debt is subject to the limitation
prescribed by the State Constitution. The aggregate debt
contracted by the state as of June 30, 2014, does not
exceed that amount for which payments of principal and
interest in any fiscal year would require the state to expend
more than 9 percent of the arithmetic mean of its general
state revenues for the three immediately preceding fiscal
years. The arithmetic mean of its general state revenues for
fiscal years 2012, 2013, and 2014 is $13.25 billion. The
debt service limitation, 9 percent of this mean, is $1.19
billion. The state’s maximum annual debt service as of
June 30, 2014, subject to the constitutional debt limitation
is $1.13 billion, or $66.7 million less than the debt service
limitation.

For further information on the debt limit, refer to the
statistical section on page 266 of this report or the
Certification of the Debt Limitation of the State of
Washington, available from the Office of the State
Treasurer at:

http://www.tre.wa.gov/documents/debt cdl2014.pdf.

By statutory provision, the State Finance Committee (SFC)
is authorized to supervise and control the issuance of all
state bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness.
The SFC is composed of the Governor, Lieutenant
Governor, and State Treasurer, the latter serving as
chairman.

As of June 30, 2014, the state of Washington's general
obligation debt was rated Aal by Moody's Investor
Service, AA+ by Standard & Poot's Rating Group (S & P),
and AA+ by Fitch Ratings.

STATE OF WASHINGTON
Bond Debt
(in millions of dollars)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013* 2014 2013* 2014 2013

General obligation (GO) bonds S 18,954 S 18,200 S 8 S 11 S 18,962 S 18,211
Accreted interest on zero

interest rate GO bonds 416 - - 416 439
Revenue bonds 1,894 1,638 2,236 2,098 4,130 3,736

Total S 21,264 S 20,277 S 2,244 S 2,109 S 23,508 S 22,386

* Prior year balances restated for comparability

The state had revenue debt outstanding at June 30, 2014,
of $4.13 billion, an increase of $394.3 million over fiscal
year 2013. This increase is primarily related to grant
anticipation revenue bonds issued by the Washington State
Department of Transportation and revenue bonds issued
by state colleges and universities. This debt is not
supported or intended to be supported by the full faith and
credit of the state. Revenue bond debt is generally secured
by specific sources of revenue. The exception is the
University of Washington which issues general revenue
bonds that are payable from general revenues of the
university.

General obligation and revenue bonds totaling $697.2
million were refunded during the year. Washington’s
refunding activity produced $136.4 million in gross debt
service savings.
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Additional information on the state’s bond debt
obligations is presented in Note 7 beginning on page 114
of this report.

Conditions with Expected
Future Impact

Economic Outlook. Washington is well positioned for
economic and population expansion. The state has a
diverse industrial and environmental base that supports
trade with Pacific Rim countries as well as knowledge-
based industries including information, health, business,
and financial services.
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State of Washington

That said, in the coming year, legislative leaders and
management will be facing a number of challenges
including:

e Weak growth in Europe and slowing Asian growth
remain significant threats to the U.S. economy.

e Federal fiscal policy remains a drag on economic
growth through contractionary spending and tax
policies. Monetary policy remains accommodative, but
rate increases are expected next year.

e Washington’s economy continues to grow at a
moderate pace.

e As Washington’s economy continues its slow recovery,
state revenue collections are rebounding, but at a much
slower pace than following previous recessions.
Washington’s heavy reliance on sales taxes is feeling
the impact of the lingering effect of the recession on
consumer confidence and tax cuts previously enacted
as well as a shift in consumer spending to untaxed
services and online purchases.

e Under legislation approved in 2012, and beginning with
the 2013-2015 biennium, Washington became the only
state in the nation required to pass a budget that
balances spending against anticipated revenue over a
four year petiod.

e Washington continues to face the requirements of the
state Supreme Court 2012 McCleary ruling that found
that the state has failed to meet its constitutional
requirement to amply fund basic education. Although
funding progress is being made through the 2013-2015
biennial budget, it was insufficient to satisfy the court.
In September 2014, the court found the state in
contempt and threatened sanctions if an acceptable
funding plan is not in place by the end of the 2015
legislative session.

General Election. There is a measure on the state’s
November 4, 2014, general election ballot that addresses
K-12 education. This measure, if passed, could impact the
state fiscally.

Election results are not final or official until certified. By

law December 4, 2014, is the last day for the Office of the
Secretary of State to certify General Election returns.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Information is posted as available on the Secretary of
State’s website at: http://www.s0s.wa.gov.

Rainy Day Account. In November 2007, Washington
state voters ratified Engrossed Substitute Senate Joint
Resolution 8206, amending the state’s Constitution and
establishing the Budget Stabilization Account (BSA). The
Constitution details a limited number of circumstances
under which funds can be appropriated from the BSA, one
of which is a favorable vote of at least three-fifths of the
members of each House of the Legislature.

On June 30, 2014, $144.5 million was transferred to the
BSA from the General Fund in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution. The BSA has a fund
balance of $414.6 million as of June 30, 2014.

New Pension Reporting Standards. For fiscal year
2015 financial reporting, the state will be implementing
Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board _Awounting and Financial Reporting  for
Pensions. Current pension reporting standards focus on
plan funding requirements. Plan level information on the
pension plans administered by the state is presented in
Note 11 and in the required supplementary information
section of this report.

Statement 68 requires each governmental employer to
report its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
While decision making authority related to pension
funding is not impacted, Statement 68 will have an impact
on the state’s government—wide and proprietary fund
financial statements beginning in fiscal year 2015.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of the state of Washington’s finances for all
those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Office of Financial
Management, Accounting Division, P.O. Box 43113,
Olympia, WA 98504-3113.
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State of Washington

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Taxes receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Other receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted cash and investments
Investments, noncurrent
Restricted investments, noncurrent
Restricted receivables, noncurrent
Other assets
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
Total capital assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow on refundings

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Continued
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
S 5,996,232 S 4,839,166 10,835,398 S 194,217
3,299,766 - 3,299,766 -
2,152,919 1,716,053 3,868,972 130,654
319,537 (319,537) - -
4,068,870 159,412 4,228,282 -
97,283 49,101 146,384 8,847
554,458 6,800 561,258 6,012
4,912,816 17,548,126 22,460,942 123,891
- 56,414 56,414 31,402
39,502 - 39,502 -
26,760 337,926 364,686 130,148
25,970,585 169,192 26,139,777 74,489
10,404,649 2,680,954 13,085,603 765,278
36,375,234 2,850,146 39,225,380 839,767
57,843,377 27,243,607 85,086,984 1,464,938
- 14,801 14,801 -
- 14,801 14,801 -
$ 57,843,377 S 27,258,408 85,101,785 $ 1,464,938

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Contracts and retainage payable
Accrued liabilities
Obligations under security lending agreements
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow on refundings

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Unemployment compensation
Nonexpendable permanent endowments
Expendable endowment funds
Wildlife and natural resources
Transportation
Budget stabilization
Capital projects
Loan programs
Higher education
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

State of Washington

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Basic Financial Statements

Concluded
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
S 1,390,863 S 127,010 S 1,517,873 S 67,521
165,083 31,546 196,629 9,040
1,667,533 622,544 2,290,077 124,818
146,036 71,518 217,554 -
1,301,613 273,891 1,575,504 -
371,589 63,585 435,174 14,038
1,303,646 2,240,571 3,544,217 21,386
24,690,914 27,705,736 52,396,650 412,278
31,037,277 31,136,401 62,173,678 649,081
1,711 10 1,721 -
1,711 10 1,721 -
19,816,512 624,901 20,441,413 419,725
- 3,815,039 3,815,039 -
2,257,583 - 2,257,583 -
1,231,600 - 1,231,600 -
889,016 - 889,016 -
874,465 - 874,465 -
414,601 - 414,601 -
188,198 - 188,198 -
115,474 - 115,474 -
115,072 - 115,072 -
502,740 - 502,740 21,771
399,128 (8,317,943) (7,918,815) 374,361
26,804,389 (3,878,003) 22,926,386 815,857
$ 57,843,377 $ 27,258,408  $ 85,101,785 $ 1,464,938
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State of Washington

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues
Operating Grants Capital Grants
and Contributions  and Contributions

Charges for
Functions/Programs Expenses Services

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:

General government S 1,607,005 S 869,498 S 276,803 2,494
Education - elementary and secondary (K-12) 8,914,440 25,620 1,096,209 -
Education - higher education 6,909,640 2,741,436 2,270,307 23,171
Human services 15,052,413 612,377 9,286,850 -
Adult corrections 911,055 8,325 2,002 -
Natural resources and recreation 1,136,795 510,286 196,830 44,073
Transportation 2,399,479 1,082,272 111,074 995,777
Interest on long-term debt 938,262 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 37,869,089 5,849,814 13,240,075 1,065,515
Business-Type Activities:
Workers' compensation 3,142,195 2,237,212 8,403 -
Unemployment compensation 1,380,035 1,348,923 303,675 -
Higher education student services 2,079,556 1,987,473 13,376 -
Washington's lottery 463,202 594,511 - -
Guaranteed education tuition program 185,002 138,095 - -
Other 132,839 109,700 570 -
Total Business-Type Activities 7,382,829 6,415,914 326,024 -
Total Primary Government S 45,251,918 S 12,265,728 S 13,566,099 S 1,065,515
COMPONENT UNITS S 859,215 S 802,474 S 95,322 S -
Total Component Units S 859,215 S 802,474 S 95,322 S -

General Revenues:
Taxes, net of related credits:
Sales and use
Business and occupation

Property

Motor vehicle and fuel
Excise

Cigarette and tobacco
Public utilities
Insurance premium
Other

Interest and investment earnings
Total general revenues
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses before

contributions to endowments and transfers
Contributions to endowments
Transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning, as restated
Net Position - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

State of Washington

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (458,210) $ - $ (458,210)
(7,792,611) - (7,792,611)
(1,874,726) - (1,874,726)
(5,153,186) - (5,153,186)
(900,728) - (900,728)
(385,606) - (385,606)
(210,356) - (210,356)
(938,262) - (938,262)
(17,713,685) - (17,713,685)
- (896,580) (896,580)
- 272,563 272,563
- (78,707) (78,707)
- 131,309 131,309
- (46,907) (46,907)
- (22,569) (22,569)
- (640,891) (640,891)
(17,713,685) (640,891) (18,354,576)
$ 38,581
38,581
8,364,679 - 8,364,679 -
3,267,401 - 3,267,401 -
1,974,354 - 1,974,354 16,342
1,215,398 - 1,215,398 -
716,609 22,434 739,043 -
443,185 - 443,185 -
463,807 - 463,807 -
467,351 - 467,351 -
936,812 - 936,812 729
620,777 1,617,829 2,238,606 (14,169)
18,470,373 1,640,263 20,110,636 2,902
756,688 999,372 1,756,060 41,483
66,356 - 66,356 -
93,799 (93,799) - -
916,843 905,573 1,822,416 41,483
25,887,546 (4,783,576) 21,103,970 815,857
S 26,804,389 S (3,878,003) S 22,926,386 S 857,340

Basic Financial Statements

43



State of Washington

44

This page intentionally left blank.

Basic Financial Statements



State of Washington

Basic Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements

Basic Financial Statements

45



ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments
Investments
Taxes receivable (net of allowance)
Other receivables (net of allowance)
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories and prepaids
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments

Receivables

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Contracts and retainages payable

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under security lending agreements
Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Unearned revenue

Claims and judgments payable

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable fund balance
Restricted fund balance
Committed fund balance
Assigned fund balance
Unassigned fund balance
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

State of Washington

Balance Sheet
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Nonmajor
Higher Education  Higher Education Governmental

General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total
$ 944,101 $ - $ 547,676 $ 3,470,082 $ 4,961,859
23,405 1,250,093 3,421,965 258,600 4,954,063
3,154,782 18,908 - 126,076 3,299,766
195,276 975,691 34,565 897,085 2,102,617
223,442 915,864 6 410,179 1,549,491
1,071,409 159,715 - 2,438,999 3,670,123
14,570 25,291 - 51,996 91,857
43,924 166 - 510,349 554,439
997 19,728 - 6,453 27,178
$ 5,671,906 $ 3,365,456 $ 4,004,212 $ 8,169,819 $ 21,211,393
$ 855,672 S 81,515 S 33,112 S 371,490 S 1,341,789
34,604 2,370 3,194 115,415 155,583
208,449 365,249 558,062 83,729 1,215,489
64,757 3,018 422 66,383 134,580
272,894 56,571 2,561 696,168 1,028,194
877,920 2,138 - 179,785 1,059,843
83,640 211,974 582 74,000 370,196
26,281 - - 9,956 36,237
2,424,217 722,835 597,933 1,596,926 5,341,911
1,421,548 14,326 20,636 1,001,833 2,458,343
1,421,548 14,326 20,636 1,001,833 2,458,343
50,475 66,662 2,123,084 248,311 2,488,532
416,652 160 1,262,559 2,745,442 4,424,813
142,586 2,561,473 - 2,577,307 5,281,366
879,952 - - - 879,952
336,476 - - - 336,476
1,826,141 2,628,295 3,385,643 5,571,060 13,411,139
$ 5,671,906 S 3,365,456 S 4,004,212 $ 8,169,819 $ 21,211,393

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds S 13,411,139

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Non-depreciable assets S 25,946,178
Depreciable assets 18,006,913
Less: Accumulated depreciation (8,327,059)
Total capital assets 35,626,032

Some of the state's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are
not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, 2,458,343
and therefore are considered deferred inflows in the funds.

Certain pension trust funds have been funded in excess of the annual required
contributions, creating a year-end asset. This asset is not a financial 18,400
resource and therefore is not reported in the funds.

Unmatured interest on general obligation bonds is not recognized in the funds (402,312)
until due.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service 268,649
funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Bonds and other financing contracts payable $ (20,853,721)
Accreted interest on bonds (415,936)
Compensated absences (513,750)
Other postemployment benefits obligations (1,632,479)
Unfunded pension obligations (398,897)
Claims and judgments (39,009)
Pollution remediation obligations (164,839)
Other obligations (557,231)

Total long-term liabilities (24,575,862)

Net Position of Governmental Activities S 26,804,389

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Nonmajor
Higher Education Higher Education Governmental
General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total

REVENUES
Retail sales and use taxes S 8,275,469 S - S - S 89,210 S 8,364,679
Business and occupation taxes 3,261,883 - - 5,518 3,267,401
Property taxes 1,974,354 - - - 1,974,354
Excise taxes 650,134 27,189 - 39,286 716,609
Motor vehicle and fuel taxes - - - 1,215,398 1,215,398
Other taxes 1,846,045 174,221 - 305,623 2,325,889
Licenses, permits, and fees 107,564 910 - 1,518,323 1,626,797
Timber sales 2,032 N 18,125 144,844 165,001
Other contracts and grants 238,897 785,499 - 113,461 1,137,857
Federal grants-in-aid 10,225,586 1,478,073 - 1,464,074 13,167,733
Charges for services 33,969 2,462,588 3 639,006 3,135,566
Investment income (loss) 7,322 49,939 479,145 84,371 620,777
Miscellaneous revenue 166,044 129,188 2,789 501,067 799,088
Unclaimed property 65,653 - - - 65,653
Contributions and donations - - 66,356 - 66,356
Total Revenues 26,854,952 5,107,607 566,418 6,120,181 38,649,158
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 832,570 - 127 447,115 1,279,812

Human services 14,919,504 - - 813,647 15,733,151

Natural resources and recreation 408,840 - - 628,535 1,037,375

Transportation 41,810 - - 1,774,743 1,816,553

Education 9,753,820 4,837,498 2,470 536,253 15,130,041
Intergovernmental 114,081 - - 341,553 455,634
Capital outlays 50,986 175,721 15,944 2,050,463 2,293,114
Debt service:

Principal 9,099 20,625 - 838,395 868,119

Interest 3,428 13,674 - 921,643 938,745
Total Expenditures 26,134,138 5,047,518 18,541 8,352,347 39,552,544
Excess of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 720,814 60,089 547,877 (2,232,166) (903,386)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued 168,458 408 - 1,699,761 1,868,627
Refunding bonds issued - - - 558,580 558,580
Payments to escrow agents for refunded bond debt - - - (633,580) (633,580)
Issuance premiums 931 173 - 243,057 244,161
Other debt issued 314 4,264 - 40,700 45,278
Transfers in 518,000 1,189,017 528,254 2,121,031 4,356,302
Transfers out (964,973) (1,113,372) (668,309) (1,527,232) (4,273,886)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (277,270) 80,490 (140,055) 2,502,317 2,165,482
Net Change in Fund Balances 443,544 140,579 407,822 270,151 1,262,096
Fund Balances - Beginning, as restated 1,382,597 2,487,716 2,977,821 5,300,909 12,149,043
Fund Balances - Ending S 1,826,141 S 2,628,295 S 3,385,643 S 5,571,060 S 13,411,139

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of capital assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
In the current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlays

Less: Depreciation expense

Some revenues in the Statement of Activities do not provide current
financial resources, and therefore, are unavailable in governmental funds.
Also, revenues related to prior periods that became available during the
current period are reported in governmental funds but are eliminated in
the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net adjustment.

Pension trust funding in excess of annual required contributions
uses current financial resources, but does not qualify as an expense.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds. The change in net position
of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Bond proceeds and other financing contracts provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the related debt principal
consumes those financial resources. These transactions, however, have no effect
on net position. In the current period, these amounts consist of:

Bonds and other financing contracts issued

Principal payments on bonds and other financing contracts

Accreted interest on bonds

Some expenses/revenue reductions reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not recognized
in governmental funds. Also payments of certain obligations related to prior periods
are recognized in governmental funds but are eliminated in the Statement of Activities.
In the current period, the net adjustments consist of:

Compensated absences

Other postemployment benefits obligations

Unfunded pension obligations

Pollution remediation obligations

Claims and judgments

Accrued interest

Unclaimed property

Other obligations

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,262,096
1,591,600
(650,426) 941,174
43,120
(1,600)
(2,636)
(2,467,776)
1,476,117
22,851 (968,808)
16,044
(242,795)
(58,456)
6,977
1,240
(22,368)
5,877
(63,022) (356,503)
916,843
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State of Washington

Statement of Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Workers'
Compensation

Unemployment
Compensation

Higher Education
Student Services

Guaranteed
Education
Tuition Program

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and pooled investments
Investments
Other receivables (net of allowance)
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Investments, noncurrent
Restricted investments, noncurrent
Restricted receivables, noncurrent
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable assets
Buildings
Other improvements
Furnishings, equipment, and intangibles
Infrastructure
Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow on refundings

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 81,771 $ 3,207,116 1,314,971 $ 1,048
4,418 - 31,093 67,100
782,306 640,252 207,360 61,913
1,294 4,341 3,358 1
1,012 65,292 69,640 -

304 - 41,425 -

234 - 14,428 -

720 - 6,080 -
872,059 3,917,001 1,688,355 130,062
14,502,544 - 251,316 2,650,837
1,951 - 54,463 -
3,511 - 103,534 216,000
3,240 - 60,587 -
65,134 - 3,185,920 -
1,289 - 94,107 -
88,926 - 555,616 89

. - 42,331 -

(102,598) - (1,270,279) (89)
10,661 - 93,164 -
14,574,658 - 3,170,759 2,866,837
15,446,717 3,917,001 4,859,114 2,996,899
. - 14,801 -

- - 14,801 -

$ 15,446,717 $ 3,917,001 4,873,915 $ 2,996,899
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State of Washington

Continued

Governmental

Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Total Funds

S 103,259 S 4,708,165 S 956,565
28,390 131,001 15,792
24,222 1,716,053 37,895
7,918 16,912 82,747

4,719 140,663 8,025

7,372 49,101 19,597

218 14,880 6,513

- 6,800 19

176,098 6,783,575 1,127,153
143,429 17,548,126 20,770

- 56,414 -

- - 12,324

1 323,046 81

1,540 65,367 6,212
12,828 3,263,882 506,161
2,563 97,959 15,866
30,397 675,028 856,345

- 42,331 1,948
(25,280) (1,398,246) (655,525)

- 103,825 18,196

165,478 20,777,732 782,378
341,576 27,561,307 1,909,531

- 14,801 -

- 14,801 -

S 341,576 S 27,576,108 S 1,909,531

Basic Financial Statements

51



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Contracts and retainages payable

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under security lending agreements

Bonds and notes payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Unearned revenue

Claims and judgments payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Claims and judgments payable
Bonds and notes payable
Other long-term liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow on refundings

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Unemployment compensation
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Statement of Net Position
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Workers'

Compensation

Unemployment
Compensation

Higher Education
Student Services

Guaranteed
Education
Tuition Program

S 3,482 $ - 110,855 S 278
10,440 66 20,875 173,000
310,970 7,995 298,963 1,042
4,418 - - 67,100
3,820 - 88,548 -
6,298 17,063 470,609 139

23 76,838 7 -

6,720 - 56,252 -
1,907,912 - - -
2,254,083 101,962 1,046,109 241,559
22,529,622 - - -
4,050 - 2,195,061 -
43,370 - 185,594 2,594,350
22,577,042 - 2,380,655 2,594,350
24,831,125 101,962 3,426,764 2,835,909
- - 10 -

- - 10 -

58,781 - 550,036 1

- 3,815,039 - -
(9,443,189) - 897,105 160,989
(9,384,408) 3,815,039 1,447,141 160,990
$ 15,446,717 $ 3,917,001 4,873,915 S 2,996,899
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Concluded
Governmental
Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Total Funds
S 12,395 S 127,010 S 49,074
164 204,545 1,100
68,434 687,404 68,534
- 71,518 11,456
442 92,810 84,011
18,329 512,438 108,448
2,287 79,155 27,186
613 63,585 1,393
1,988 1,909,900 191,221
104,652 3,748,365 542,423
7,957 22,537,579 496,466
5,525 2,204,636 468,963
140,207 2,963,521 131,319
153,689 27,705,736 1,096,748
258,341 31,454,101 1,639,171
- 10 1,711
- 10 1,711
16,083 624,901 239,555
- 3,815,039 -
67,152 (8,317,943) 29,094
83,235 (3,878,003) 268,649
S 341,576 S 27,576,108 S 1,909,531
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State of Washington

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Guaranteed
Workers' Unemployment Higher Education Education
Compensation Compensation Student Services Tuition Program

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales $ - $ - $ 98,180 $ -

Less: Cost of goods sold - - 62,291 -
Gross profit - - 35,889 -
Charges for services 18 - 1,747,438 136,949
Premiums and assessments 2,200,410 1,330,732 - -
Federal aid for unemployment

insurance benefits - 303,675 - -
Lottery ticket proceeds - - - -
Miscellaneous revenue 36,939 18,191 145,047 1,145
Total Operating Revenues 2,237,367 1,652,598 1,928,374 138,094
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 145,431 - 727,557 2,446
Employee benefits 58,367 - 184,001 559
Personal services 5,660 - 32,234 1,106
Goods and services 76,389 - 776,114 903
Travel 4,047 - 25,547 39
Premiums and claims 2,810,658 1,380,035 - -
Lottery prize payments - - - -
Depreciation and amortization 7,228 - 154,094 1
Guaranteed education tuition program expense - - - 179,948
Miscellaneous expenses 33,954 - 21,736 -
Total Operating Expenses 3,141,734 1,380,035 1,921,283 185,002
Operating Income (Loss) (904,367) 272,563 7,091 (46,908)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings (loss) on investments 1,136,910 72,735 36,076 369,004
Interest expense (461) - (95,991) -
Tax and license revenue 81 - - -
Other revenues (expenses) 8,248 - 10,193 1
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,144,778 72,735 (49,722) 369,005
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and

Transfers 240,411 345,298 (42,631) 322,097
Capital contributions - - - -
Transfers in - - 382,670 -
Transfers out - - (326,295) -
Net Contributions and Transfers - - 56,375 -
Change in Net Position 240,411 345,298 13,744 322,097
Net Position - Beginning, as restated (9,624,819) 3,469,741 1,433,397 (161,107)
Net Position - Ending S (9,384,408) S 3,815,039 S 1,447,141 S 160,990

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Total Funds

$ 76,588 S 174,768 $ 82,232
53,352 115,643 75,988
23,236 59,125 6,244
29,686 1,914,091 604,880

148 3,531,290 1,346,511

- 303,675 -

594,523 594,523 -
3,295 204,617 155,435
650,888 6,607,321 2,113,070
48,227 923,661 279,844
18,515 261,442 100,263
15,381 54,381 21,199
85,305 938,711 323,001
1,779 31,412 4,014

- 4,190,693 1,297,710

371,532 371,532 -
1,022 162,345 86,300

- 179,948 -

665 56,355 873

542,426 7,170,480 2,113,204
108,462 (563,159) (134)
3,104 1,617,829 4,810
(263) (96,715) (22,869)

22,353 22,434 21

541 18,983 2,932
25,735 1,562,531 (15,106)
134,197 999,372 (15,240)

- - 1,221

12,151 394,821 44,402
(162,325) (488,620) (33,019)
(150,174) (93,799) 12,604
(15,977) 905,573 (2,636)
99,212 (4,783,576) 271,285

S 83,235 S (3,878,003) S 268,649
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State of Washington

Statement of Cash Flows

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Guaranteed
Workers' Unemployment Higher Education Education
Compensation Compensation Student Services Tuition Program
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers S 2,121,621 $ 1,337,582 S 1,847,547 S 151,948
Payments to suppliers (2,067,752) (1,375,677) (791,236) (133,086)
Payments to employees (197,425) - (885,172) (2,925)
Other receipts 36,788 331,775 145,045 1,145
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (106,768) 293,680 316,184 17,082
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in - - 382,670 -
Transfers out - - (326,295) -
Operating grants and donations received 8,588 - 13,057 -
Taxes and license fees collected 81 - - R
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 8,669 - 69,432 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (527) - (88,001) -
Principal payments on long-term capital financing (3,605) - (82,660) -
Proceeds from long-term capital financing - - 252,827 -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2 - 11,824 -
Acquisitions of capital assets (4,723) - (258,133) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (8,853) - (164,143) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of interest 813,876 72,735 13,724 81,846
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 7,197,551 - 37,245 344,145
Purchases of investment securities (7,887,123) - (148,797) (443,129)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 124,304 72,735 (97,828) (17,138)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Pooled Investments 17,352 366,415 123,645 (56)
Cash and Pooled Investments, July 1, as restated 65,139 2,840,701 1,197,406 1,104
Cash and Pooled Investments, June 30 S 82,491 S 3,207,116 $ 1,321,051 S 1,048

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) S (904,367) S 272,563 S 7,091 S (46,908)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operations:

Depreciation 7,228 - 154,094 1

Revenue reduced for uncollectible accounts 33,104 - 1,180 -
Change in Assets: Decrease (Increase)

Receivables (78,961) 16,758 (14,503) 14,999

Inventories (120) - 16,054 -

Prepaid expenses (232) - (1,823) -
Change in Liabilities: Increase (Decrease)

Payables 836,580 4,359 154,091 48,990
Net Cash or Cash Equivalents Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ (106,768) S 293,680 S 316,184 S 17,082

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Continued
Governmental
Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Total Funds

S 701,275 S 6,159,973 $ 2,049,352
(552,651) (4,920,402) (1,783,650)
(64,499) (1,150,021) (374,809)

3,288 518,041 167,223

87,413 607,591 58,116
12,151 394,821 44,402
(162,325) (488,620) (33,019)

570 22,215 332

22,353 22,434 21
(127,251) (49,150) 11,736
(263) (88,791) (22,368)

(433) (86,698) (40,629)

- 252,827 28,734

78 11,904 5,081

(1,831) (264,687) (86,981)

(2,449) (175,445) (116,163)

59 982,240 3,391

37,945 7,616,886 198,030
(3,689) (8,482,738) (16,560)

34,315 116,388 184,861
(7,972) 499,384 138,550
111,231 4,215,581 818,034

S 103,259 S 4,714,965 S 956,584
$ 108,462 $  (563,159) $ (134)
1,022 162,345 86,300

51 34,335 56

(34) (61,741) 16,973

725 16,659 1,195

334 (1,721) (1,686)
(23,147) 1,020,873 (44,588)

S 87,413 S 607,591 S 58,116
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State of Washington

Statement of Cash Flows
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Guaranteed
Workers' Unemployment Higher Education Education
Compensation Compensation Student Services Tuition Program
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributions of capital assets S - S - S - S -
Acquisition of capital assets through capital leases - - 1,705 -
Amortization of annuity prize liability - - - -
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 325,109 - 247 286,935
Debt refunding deposited with escrow agent - - 28,995 -
Amortization of debt premium/discount - - 5,060 -
Increase in ownership of joint venture - - 13,539 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Concluded
Governmental
Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Service
Funds Total Funds
$ - $ - $ 1,221
- 1,705 -
8,866 8,866 -
3,045 615,336 1,874
- 28,995 43,435
- 5,060 -
- 13,539 -
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State of Washington

Statement of Net Position

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Local
Private- Government Pension and
Purpose Investment Other Employee
Trust Pool Benefit Plans Agency Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and pooled investments S 1,289 S 4,935,323 S 53,667 S 87,568
Investments - 2,977,583 - -
Receivables, pension and other employee benefit plans:

Employers - - 162,909 -

Members (net of allowance) - - 2,325 -

Interest and dividends - - 238,960 -

Investment trades pending - - 1,371,150 -

Due from other pension and other employee benefit funds - - 7,076 -
Other receivables, all other funds - 582 - 5,613
Due from other governments - - - 17,201
Total Current Assets 1,289 7,913,488 1,836,087 110,382
Noncurrent Assets:
Investments, noncurrent, pension and

other employee benefit plans:

Public equity - - 37,470,297 -

Fixed income - - 18,399,286 -

Private equity - - 18,336,590 -

Real estate - - 9,929,236 -

Security lending - - 1,091,768 -

Liquidity - - 1,817,174 -

Tangible assets - - 1,366,904 -
Investments, noncurrent, all other funds 1,438 918,527 - 194
Other noncurrent assets - - - 55,976
Capital assets:

Furnishings, equipment, and intangibles 37 - - -

Accumulated depreciation (18) - - -
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,457 918,527 88,411,255 56,170
Total Assets 2,746 8,832,015 90,247,342 S 166,552
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 114 - - $ 4,618
Contracts and retainages payable - - - 27,419
Accrued liabilities 246 152,727 1,858,919 57,887
Obligations under security lending agreements - - 1,094,149 4,134
Due to other funds - 70 - -
Due to other pension and other employee benefit funds - - 7,076 -
Due to other governments - 18,211 - 16,519
Unearned revenue - - 310 -
Other long-term liabilities - - - 55,975
Total Liabilities 360 171,008 2,960,454 S 166,552
NET POSITION
Net position held in trust for:

Pension benefits - - 83,709,133

Deferred compensation participants - - 3,577,755

Local government pool participants - 8,661,007 -

Individuals, organizations, and other governments 2,386 - -
Total Net Position S 2,386 $ 8,661,007 S 87,286,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Statement of Changes in Net Position

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Local
Private- Government Pension and
Purpose Investment Other Employee
Trust Pool Benefit Plans
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employers S - S - $ 1,538,957
Members - - 1,102,446
State - - 61,933
Participants - 12,482,112 190,538
Total Contributions - 12,482,112 2,893,874
Investment Income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value - - 12,158,388
Interest and dividends - 10,017 1,813,003
Less: Investment expenses - - (316,706)
Net Investment Income (Loss) - 10,017 13,654,685
Other Additions:
Unclaimed property 60,539 - -
Transfers from other pension plans - - 4,762
Other contracts, grants and miscellaneous - - 314
Total Other Additions 60,539 - 5,076
Total Additions 60,539 12,492,129 16,553,635
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits - - 3,463,580
Pension refunds - - 452,732
Transfers to other pension plans - - 4,762
Administrative expenses 3,604 975 3,251
Distributions to participants - 12,564,303 212,298
Payments to or on behalf of individuals, organizations and other
governments in accordance with state unclaimed property laws 59,115 - -
Total Deductions 62,719 12,565,278 4,136,623
Net Increase (Decrease) (2,180) (73,149) 12,417,012
Net Position - Beginning 4,566 8,734,156 74,869,876
Net Position - Ending S 2,386 S 8,661,007 S 87,286,888

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Statement of Net Position

COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Health Valley
Public Benefit Medical Northwest
Stadium Exchange Center Hospital
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and pooled investments S 7,674 S 12,441 S 62,729 S 18,689
Investments - - 10,104 1,026
Investments, restricted 3,818 - - 2,194
Other receivables (net of allowance) 812 21,730 66,729 36,685
Inventories - - 4,083 4,764
Prepaid expenses 23 294 5,716 2,867
Total Current Assets 12,327 34,465 149,361 66,225
Noncurrent Assets:
Investments, noncurrent - - 78,085 45,806
Restricted investments, noncurrent 7,322 - 15,379 8,701
Other noncurrent assets - - - 4,022
Capital assets:
Land 34,677 - 13,299 10,817
Buildings 460,637 - 416,426 130,747
Other improvements - 637 18,699 19,443
Furnishings, equipment and intangible assets 19,557 44,699 220,899 199,432
Accumulated depreciation (203,140) (8,106) (309,157) (245,605)
Construction in progress - - 11,290 4,406
Total Noncurrent Assets 319,053 37,230 464,920 177,769
Total Assets S 331,380 S 71,695 S 614,281 S 243,994
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 32 S - S 11,840 S 14,392
Contracts and retainages payable 2,778 4,638 - 9,040
Accrued liabilities 4,319 29,828 71,188 35,337
Unearned revenue - - - -
Total Current Liabilities 7,129 34,466 83,028 58,769
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other long-term liabilities 7,400 - 319,360 85,518
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,400 - 319,360 85,518
Total Liabilities 14,529 34,466 402,388 144,287
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 299,647 37,229 43,156 39,583
Restricted for deferred sales tax 10,402 - - -
Restricted for other purposes - - 7,814 2,472
Unrestricted 6,802 - 160,923 57,652
Total Net Position 316,851 37,229 211,893 99,707
Total Liabilities and Net Position S 331,380 S 71,695 S 614,281 S 243,994

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor
Component
Units Total

S 23,925 S 125,458
57,629 68,759

- 6,012

4,698 130,654

- 8,847

191 9,091

86,443 348,821

- 123,891

- 31,402

117,035 121,057

- 58,793

- 1,007,810

- 38,779

1,708 486,295
(1,598) (767,606)

- 15,696

117,145 1,116,117

$ 203,588 $ 1,464,938

$ 39,312 $ 65,576
- 16,456

61 140,733
14,038 14,038
53,411 236,803
- 412,278

- 412,278
53,411 649,081
110 419,725

- 10,402

1,083 11,369
148,984 374,361
150,177 815,857

$ 203,588 $ 1,464,938
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State of Washington

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Health Valley
Public Benefit Medical Northwest
Stadium Exchange Center Hospital

EXPENSES S 16,450 S 61,218 S 466,014 S 295,160
PROGRAM REVENUES

Charges for Services 3,310 - 470,732 290,122
Operating grants and contributions - 88,388 - -
Total Program Revenues 3,310 88,388 470,732 290,122
Net Program Revenues (Expense) (13,140) 27,170 4,718 (5,038)
GENERAL REVENUES

Earnings (loss) on investments 364 - (15,025) (107)
Taxes - - 16,342 -
Other - - - 724
Total General Revenues 364 - 1,317 617
Change in Net Position (12,776) 27,170 6,035 (4,421)
Net Position - Beginning, as restated 329,627 10,059 205,858 104,128
Net Position - Ending S 316,851 S 37,229 S 211,893 S 99,707

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Washington

Component Units Total
S 20,373 859,215
38,310 802,474
6,934 95,322
45,244 897,796
24,871 38,581
599 (14,169)
- 16,342
5 729
604 2,902
25,475 41,483
124,702 774,374
S 150,177 815,857
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State of Washington

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the state of
Washington have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
Office of Financial Management (OFM) is the primary
authority for the state’s accounting and reporting
requitements. OFM has adopted the pronouncements of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB),
which is nationally accepted as the standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. Following is a summary of the
significant accounting policies:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

In defining the state of Washington for financial reporting
purposes, management considers: all funds, organizations,
institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are
legally part of the state (the primary government) and
organizations that are financially accountable to the state.
Additionally, other organizations that do not meet the
financial accountability criteria may be included in the
reporting entity if the nature and significance of their
relationship with the state are such that exclusion would
cause the state’s financial statements to be misleading.

Financial ~accountability —exists when the primary
government appoints a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and is either (1) able to
impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
primary government. The primary government is also
financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on and there is a potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on, the primary government regardless
of whether the organization has (1) a separately elected
governing board, (2) a governing board appointed by a
higher level of government, or (3) a jointly appointed
board. An organization is fiscally dependent if it is unable
to determine its budget without another government
having the substantive authority to approve or modify that
budget, to levy taxes or set rates or charges without
substantive approval by another government, or to issue
bonded debt without substantive approval by another
government. The organization has a financial benefit or
burden relationship with the primary government if, for
example, any one of these conditions exists: (1) the
primary government is legally entitled to or can access the
organization’s resources; (2) the primary government is
legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation
to finance or provide financial support to the organization;
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(3) the primary government is obligated in some manner
for the debt of the organization.

Based on these criteria, the following are included in the
financial statements of the primary government:

State Agencies. Except as otherwise described herein, all
state elected offices, departments, agencies, commissions,
boards, committees, authorities, councils (agencies), and all
funds and subsidiary accounts of the state are included in
the primary government. Executives of these agencies are
cither elected, directly appointed by the Governor,
appointed by a board which is appointed by the Governor,
or appointed by a board which is in part appointed by the
Governor. Additionally, a small number of board positions
are established by statute or independently elected.

The Legislature creates these agencies, assigns their
programs, approves operational funding, and requires
financial accountability. The Legislature also authorizes all
bond issuances for capital construction projects for the
benefit of state agencies. The legal liability for these bonds
and the ownership of agency assets resides with the state.

Colleges and Universities. The governing boards of the
five state universities, the state college, and the 34 state
community and technical colleges are appointed by the
Governor. The governing board of each college and
university appoints a president to function as chief
administrator. The Legislature approves budgets and
budget amendments for the appropriated funds of each
college and university, which include the state’s General
Fund as well as certain capital projects funds. The State
Treasurer issues general obligation debt for major campus
construction projects. However, the colleges and
universities are authorized to issue revenue bonds.

The University of Washington (UW) issues general
revenue bonds that are payable from general revenues,
including student tuition and fees, grant indirect cost
recovery, sales and services revenue, and investment
income. All other revenue bonds issued by colleges and
universities pledge the income derived from acquired or
constructed assets such as housing, dining, and parking
facilities. These revenue bonds are payable solely from, and
secured by, fees and revenues derived from the operation
of constructed facilities; the legal liability for the bonds and
the ownership of the college and university assets reside
with the state.

Colleges and universities do not have separate corporate
powers and sue and are sued as patt of the state with legal
representation provided through the state Attorney
General’s Office. Since the colleges and universities are
legally part of the state, their financial operations, including
their blended component units, are reported in the state’s
financial statements using the fund structure prescribed by
GASB.
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Retirement Systems. The state of Washington, through
the Department of Retitement Systems, administers eight
retirement systems for public employees of the state and
political subdivisions: the Public Employees’ Retirement
System, the Teachers’ Retitement System, the School
Employees’ Retirement System, the Law Enforcement
Officers’ and Tire Fighters’ Retirement System, the
Washington State Patrol Retirement System, the Public
Safety Employees’ Retirement System, the Judicial
Retirement System, and the Judges’ Retitement Fund. The
director of the Department of Retitement Systems is
appointed by the Governor.

There are three additional retirement systems administered
outside of the Department of Retirement Systems. The
Volunteer Fire Fighters’ and Reserve Officers’ Relief and
Pension Fund is administered through the State Board for
Volunteer Fire Fighters and Reserve Officers, which is
appointed by the Governor. The Judicial Retirement
Account is administered through the Administrative
Office of the Courts under the direction of the Board for
Judicial Administration. The Higher Education Retirement
Plan Supplemental Defined Benefit Plans are administered
by the state’s colleges and universities.

The Legislature establishes laws pertaining to the creation
and administration of all public retirement systems. The
participants of the public retirement systems, together with
the state, provide funding for all costs of the systems based
upon actuarial valuations. The state establishes benefit
levels and approves the actuarial assumptions used in
determining contribution levels.

All of the aforementioned retirement systems are included
in the primary government’s financial statements.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are part of the state’s operations in substance.
Accordingly, they are reported as part of the state and
blended into the appropriate funds. Financial
information for the state’s blended component units may
be obtained from Office of Financial Management,
Accounting Division, P.O. Box 43113, Olympia, WA,
98504-3113. The following entities are blended in the
state’s financial statements:

Tobacco Settlement Authority. The Tobacco
Settlement Authority (TSA) was created by the
Legislature in March 2002 as a public instrumentality
separate and distinct from the state. It is governed by a
five-member board appointed by the Governor. It was
created solely for the purpose of issuing bonds to
securitize a portion of the state’s future tobacco
settlement revenue. Proceeds of the debt instrument
were transferred to the state to help fund health care,
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long-term care, and other programs of the state. Refer to
Note 7.A for additional information.

Association of University Physicians. The University
of Washington Physicians (UWP) was established for the
exclusive benefit of the University of Washington School
of Medicine (UWSOM). UWP employs UWSOM faculty
and bills and collects for their clinical services as an agent
for UWSOM.

UW Medicine Neighborhood Clinics. The UW
Medicine Neighborhood Clinics (Neighborhood Clinics)
were established for the exclusive benefit of the
University’s School of Medicine, UWP and its affiliated
medical centers, Harborview Medical Center, and the
University of Washington Medical Center. The
Neighborhood Clinics were organized to coordinate and
develop patient care in a community clinical setting. They
enhance the academic environment of UWSOM by
providing additional sites of primary care practice and
training for faculty, residents, and students.

TSB Properties, Washington Biomedical Research
Properties I and II, and Washington Biomedical
Research Facilities 3 were formed to acquire, construct,
or renovate certain real properties for the benefit of the
University of Washington in fulfilling its educational,
medical, or scientific research missions.

Tumwater Office Properties and FYI Properties were
formed to design and construct office facilities to house
state employees. The facilities were financed with tax-
exempt obligations that meet the requirements of
Revenue Ruling 63-20 and Revenue Procedure 82-26
issued by the Internal Revenue Service.

Discrete Component Units

Discretely presented component units are reported in a
separate column in the government-wide financial
statements. Discretely presented component units are
legally separate from the state and primarily serve or
benefit those outside of the state. They are financially
accountable to the state, or have relationships with the
state such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. These
entities are reported as discrete component units because
state officials either serve on or appoint the members of
the governing bodies of the authorities. The state also has
the ability to influence the operations of the authorities
through legislation.

The state’s component units each have a year-end of June
30 with the exception of the Washington Economic
Development Finance Authority and the Washington
Health Benefit Exchange which have a December 31 yeat-
end.
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The following entities are discretely presented in the
financial statements of the state in the component unit’s
column:

The Washington State Housing Finance Commission,
the Washington Higher Education Facilities
Authority, the Washington Health Care Facilities
Authority, and the Washington Economic
Development Finance Authority (financing authorities)
were created by the Legislature in a way that specifically
prevents them from causing the state to be liable or
responsible for their acts and obligations, including, but
not limited to, any obligation to pay principal and interest
on financing authority bonds. The financing authorities
cannot obligate the state, either legally or morally, and the
state has not assumed any obligation of, or with respect to,
the financing authorities.

Financial reports of these financing authorities may be
obtained from each authority at the following addresses:

Washington Health Care Facilities Authority
410 11th Avenue SE, Suite 201

PO Box 40935

Olympia, WA 98504-0935

Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Washington Higher Education Facilities Authority
Washington Economic Development Finance Authority
1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2700

Seattle, WA 98104-1046

The Washington State Public Stadium Authority
(PSA) was created by the Legislature to acquire, construct,
own, and operate a football/soccer stadium, exhibition
center, and parking garage. Construction was completed in
2002. PSA capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
total $311.7 million. The state issued general obligation
bonds for a portion of the cost of the stadium
construction. The total public share of the stadium and
exhibition center cost did not exceed $300 million from all
state and local government funding sources, as required in
statute.

Project costs in excess of $300 million were the
responsibility of the project’s private partner, First & Goal,
Inc. The bonds are being repaid through new state lottery
games, a state sales tax credit, extension of the local
hotel/motel tax, and parking and admissions taxes at the
new facility.

Financial reports of the PSA may be obtained at the
following address:

Washington State Public Stadium Authority
CenturyLink Field & Event Center

800 Occidental Avenue South, #700
Seattle, WA 98134
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The Washington Health  Benefit Exchange
(Exchange) was created by the Legislature to implement
a central marketplace for individuals, families, and small
employers to shop for health insurance and access federal
tax credits pursuant to the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act of 2010. Federal grant funding is
financing the FExchange design, development, and
implementation phases as well as the first full year of
operation during 2014. Beginning in 2015, the Exchange
must be self-sustaining  through state  funding
appropriations,  premium  tax  assessments, and
administrative fees.

Financial reports of the Exchange may be obtained at the
following address:

Washington Health Benefit Exchange
810 Jetferson Street SE
Olympia, WA 98501

Northwest Hospital was created January 1, 2010, under
an affiliation agreement between UW Medicine and
Northwest Hospital and Medical Center (Northwest
Hospital). UW Medicine is an academic medical center
comprised of UW School of Medicine, UW
Neighborhood Clinics, UW Medical Center, Harborview
Medical Center, Association of University Physicians, as
well as the University’s membership in the Seattle Cancer
Care Alliance and the Children’s University Medical
Group.

Northwest Hospital is a 281-bed full service acute care
hospital. The University is the sole corporate member of
Northwest Hospital. Financial reports of Northwest
Hospital may be obtained at the following address:

Northwest Hospital
1550 N. 115th Street
Seattle, WA 98133-9733

Valley Medical Center was created July 1, 2011, through
a strategic alliance between UW Medicine and Public
Hospital District No. 1 of King County. Valley Medical
Center owns and operates a 321-bed full service acute care
hospital and 45 clinics located throughout southeast King
County. Financial reports of Valley Medical Center may be
obtained at the following address:

Valley Medical Center
400 S. 43td Street
Renton, WA 98055

Joint Ventures
In 1998, the University of Washington Medical Center
(Medical Center) entered into an agreement with Seattle

Children’s Hospital and Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research
Center to establish the Seattle Cancer Care Alliance
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(SCCA). Each member of the SCCA has a one-third
interest. The mission of the SCCA is to eliminate cancer as
a cause of human suffering and death and to become
recognized as the premier cancer research and treatment
center in the Pacific Northwest. The SCCA integrates the
cancer research, teaching, and clinical cancer programs of
all three institutions to provide state-of-the-art cancer care.
Under the agreement, the Medical Center provides the
patient care to all adult inpatients of the SCCA.

Inpatient Services — The SCCA operates a 20-bed unit
located within the Medical Center in which its adult
inpatients receive care. The fiscal intermediary has
determined that the 20-bed unit qualifies as a hospital
within a hospital for Medicare reimbursement purposes.
The SCCA provides medical oversight and management of
the inpatient unit. Under agreements, the Medical Center
provides inpatient care services to the SCCA including
necessary personnel, equipment, and ancillary services.

Outpatient Services — The SCCA operates an ambulatory
cancer care service facility in Seattle. The Medical Center
provides various services to the SCCA’s outpatient facility
including certain pharmacy, laboratory, and pathology
services as well as billing, purchasing, and other
administrative services.

The state accounts for the Medical Center’s interest in
SCCA under the equity method of accounting. Income of
$13.6 million was recorded in fiscal year 2014, bringing the
total equity investment to $102.7 million which is
recognized in the state’s financial statements in the Higher
Education Student Services Fund.

Separate financial statements for SCCA may be obtained
from:

Seattle Cancer Care Alliance
825 Eastlake Avenue East
PO Box 19023

Seattle, WA 98109-1023

The University of Washington and Seattle Children’s
Hospital established Children’s University Medical Group
(CUMG) to assist the organizations in carrying out their
pediatric patient care, charitable, educational, and scientific
missions.

Separate financial statements for CUMG may be obtained
from:

Children’s University Medical Group

4500 Sand Point Way NE, Suite 100
Seattle, WA 98105
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B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Government-wide Financial Statements

The state presents two basic government-wide financial
statements: the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. These government-wide financial
statements report information on all non-fiduciary
activities of the primaty government and its component
units. The financial information for the primary
government is distinguished between governmental and
business-type activities. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods and services.

Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net
Position presents the state’s non-fiduciary assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position. As a general rule, balances
between governmental and business-type activities are
eliminated.

Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities
reports the extent to which each major state program is
supported by general state revenues or is self-financed
through fees and intergovernmental aid. For governmental
activities, a major program is defined as a function. For
business-type activities, a major program is an identifiable
activity.

Program revenues offset the direct expenses of major
programs. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable within a specific function or activity. Program
revenues are identified using the following criteria:

e Charges to customers for goods and services of the
program. A customer is one who directly benefits from
the goods or services or is otherwise directly affected
by the program, such as a state citizen or taxpayer, or
other governments or nongovernmental entities.

e Amounts received from outside entities that are
restricted to one or more specific programs. These
amounts can be operating or capital in nature.

e Farnings on investments that are restricted to a specific
program are also considered program revenues.

General revenues consist of taxes and other items not
meeting the definition of program revenues.
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Generally, the effect of internal activities is eliminated.
Exceptions to this rule include chatges between the
workers’ compensation insurance programs and various
other state programs and functions. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and revenues
reported for the various activities involved.

Fund Financial Statements

The state uses 642 accounts that are combined into 52
rollup funds. The state presents separate financial
statements for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual proprietary funds are reported in separate
columns in the fund financial statements, with nonmajor
funds being combined into a single column regardless of
fund type. Internal service and fiduciary funds are reported
by fund type. Major funds include:

Major Governmental Funds:

e General Fund is the state’s primary operating fund.
This fund accounts for all financial resources and
transactions not accounted for in other funds.

e Higher Education Special Revenue Fund primarily
accounts for tuition, student fees, and grants and
contracts received for educational and research
putposes.

e Higher Education Endowment Permanent Fund
accounts for gifts and bequests that the donors have
specified must remain intact. Each gift is governed by
various restrictions on the investment and use of the
income earned on investments.

Major Enterprise Funds:

e Workers’ Compensation Fund accounts for the
workers' compensation program that provides medical,
time-loss, and disability benefit payments to qualifying
individuals sustaining work-related injuries.

¢ Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for
the unemployment compensation program. It accounts
for the deposit of funds, requisitioned from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund, to provide services to
eligible participants within the state and to pay
unemployment benefits.

e Higher Education Student Services Fund is used
by colleges and universities principally for bookstore,
cafeteria, parking, student housing, food service, and
hospital business enterprise activities.

72

e Guaranteed Education Tuition Program Fund
accounts for Washington’s Guaranteed Education
Tuition (GET) Program. GET is a qualified tuition
program under Section 529 of the Internal Revenue
Code.

The state includes the following governmental and
proprietary fund types within nonmajor funds:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

e Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of
specific tevenue sources (other than trusts for
individuals,  private  organizations, or  other
governments, or for major capital projects) that are
restricted or committed to expenditures for specific
purposes. These include a variety of state programs
including public safety and health assistance programs;
natural resource and wildlife protection and
management programs; the state’s transportation
programs which include the operation of the state’s
ferry system, and maintenance and preservation of
interstate and non-interstate highway systems; driver
licensing, highway and non-highway operations, and
capital improvements; K-12 school construction; and
construction and loan programs for local public works

projects.

e Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of
resoutces that are restricted or committed to
expenditures for, and the payment of, principal and
interest on the state’s bonds issued in support of
governmental activities.

e Capital Projects Funds account for financial
resources that are restricted or committed to
expenditures for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of major state-owned capital facilities
(other than highway infrastructure or those financed by
proprietary funds).

e Common School Permanent Fund accounts for the
principal derived from the sale of timber. Intetrest
earned is used for the benefit of common schools.

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds:

e Enterprise Funds account for the state’s business
type operations for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services including: the state lottery;
vocational/education  progtams  at
institutions, and other activities.

correctional
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e Internal Service Funds account for the provision of
legal, motor pool, data processing, risk management,
health insurance, and other services by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the state
on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The state reports the following fiduciary funds:

e Pension (and other employee benefit) Trust Funds
are used to report resources that are required to be held
in trust by the state for the members and beneficiaries
of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution
pension plans, and other employee benefit plans.

e Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external
portion of the Local Government Investment Pool,
which is reported by the state as the sponsoring
government.

e Private-Purpose Trust Fund is used to teport trust
arrangements, other than pension and investment
trusts, under which principal and income benefit
individuals,  private  organizations, or  other
governments such as the administration of unclaimed

property.

e Agency Funds account for resources held by the state
in a custodial capacity for other governments, private
organizations, ot individuals.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and
Expenses. The state’s proprietaty funds make a
distinction between operating and nonoperating revenues
and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing goods and services directly related to
the principal operations of the funds. For example,
operating revenues for the state’s workers’ compensation
and health insurance funds consist of premiums and
assessments collected. Operating expenses consist of
claims paid to covered individuals, claims adjustment
expenses, costs of commercial insurance coverage, and
administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating,
including interest expense and investment gains and losses.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING

For government-wide reporting purposes, the state uses
the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items ate
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
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For fund statement reporting purposes, the state uses the
current financial resources measurement focus and
modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental
funds. With the current financial resources measurement
focus, generally only current assets and current liabilities
and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources are included on the governmental funds balance
sheet. Operating statements for these funds present
inflows (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and
outflows (i.c., expenditures and other financing uses) of
expendable financial resources.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available). “Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be reasonably
estimated. “Available” means collectible within the current
petiod or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Primary revenues that are
determined to be susceptible to accrual include sales taxes,
business and occupation taxes, motor fuel taxes, federal
grants-in-aid, and charges for services.

Revenues from property taxes are determined to be
available if collectible within 60 days. Taxes imposed on
exchange transactions are accrued when the undetlying
exchange transaction occurs if collectible within one year.
Revenue for timber cutting contracts is accrued when the
timber is harvested. Revenues from licenses, permits, and
fees are recognized when received in cash. Revenues
related to expenditure-driven grant agreements are
recognized when the qualifying expenditures are made,
provided that the availability criteria are met. Expenditure-
driven grant revenue is considered available if it can be
collected by the state at the same time cash is disbursed to
cover the associated grant expenditure. Pledges are accrued
when the eligibility requirements are met and resources are
available. All other accrued revenue sources ate
determined to be available if collectible within 12 months.

Property taxes are levied in December for the following
calendar year. The first half-year collections are due by
April 30, and the second half-year collections are due by
October 31. Since the state is on a fiscal year ending June
30, the first half-year collections are recognized as revenue,
if collectible within 60 days of the fiscal year end. The
second half-year collections are recognized as receivables
offset by unavailable revenue. The lien date on property
taxes is January 1 of the tax levy year.

Under modified accrual accounting, expenditures are
generally recognized when the related liability is incurred.
However, unmatured interest on general long-term
obligations is recognized when due and certain liabilities
including compensated absences, other postemployment
benefits, and claims and judgments are recognized when
the obligations are expected to be liquidated with available
spendable financial resources.
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The state reports both unavailable and unearned revenues
on its governmental fund balance sheet. Unavailable
revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet
both the “measurable” and the “available” criteria for
revenue recognition in the current period. Unearned
revenues arise when resoutces are received by the state
before it has a legal claim to them, such as when grant
monies are received prior to incurring qualifying
expenditures/expenses.

All proprietary and trust funds are accounted for using the
economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets, liabilities, deferred outflows
of resources, and deferred inflows of resources associated
with the operations of these funds are included on their
respective  statements of net position. Operating
statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases
(i.e., expenses) in total net position.

All proprietary and trust funds are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE

1. Cash and Investments

Investments of surplus or pooled cash balances are
reported on the accompanying Statements of Net Position,
Balance Sheets, and Statements of Cash Flows as “Cash
and Pooled Investments.” The Office of the State
Treasurer invests state treasury cash surpluses where funds
can be disbursed at any time without prior notice or
penalty. For reporting purposes, pooled investments ate
stated at fair value or amortized cost, which approximates
fair value. For purposes of reporting cash flows, the state
considers cash and pooled investments to be cash
equivalents. Pooled investments include short-term,
highly-liquid investments that are both readily convertible
to cash and are so near their maturity dates that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of
changes in interest rates.

The method of accounting for noncurrent investments
varies depending upon the fund classification. Investments
in the state’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
an external investment pool operated in a manner
consistent with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, are
reported at amortized cost which approximates fair value.
The Office of the State Treasuter prepares a stand-alone
LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is available
from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200,
Olympia, Washington 98504-0200, or phone number (360)
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902-9000. TTY users dial 711 to be connected to the state
TTY operator.

Certain pension trust fund investments, including real
estate and private equity, are reported at fair value based
on appraisals or estimates in the absence of readily
ascertainable fair values. At June 30, 2014, these alternative
investments are valued at $29.64 billion. Because of the
inherent uncertainties in the estimation of fair value, it is
possible that the estimates will change.

All other noncurrent investments are reported at fair value.
Fair values are based on published market prices,
quotations from national security exchanges and security
pricing services, or by the respective fund managers for
securities that are not actively traded. Privately held
mortgages are valued at cost, which approximates fair
value. Additional disclosure describing investments is
provided in Note 3.

2. Receivables and Payables

Receivables in the state’s governmental fund type accounts
consist primarily of taxes and federal revenues. Receivables
in all other funds have arisen in the ordinary course of
business. Receivables are recorded when either the asset or
revenue recognition criteria (refer to Note 1.C) have been
met. All receivables are reported net of an allowance for
accounts estimated to be uncollectible.

For government-wide reporting purposes, amounts
recorded as interfund/interagency receivables and payables
are ecliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns on the Statement of Net Position,
except for the net residual balances due between the
governmental and business-type activities, which ate
reported as internal balances. Amounts recorded in
governmental and business-type activities as due to or
from fiduciary funds have been reported as due to or from
other governments.

3. Inventories and Prepaids

Consumable inventories, consisting of expendable
materials and supplies held for consumption, are valued
and reported in the state’s financial statements if the fiscal
year-end balance on hand at an inventory control point is
estimated to be $50,000 or more. Consumable inventories
are generally valued at cost using the first-in, first-out
method. Donated consumable inventories are recorded at
fair market value.

All merchandise inventories are considered reportable for

financial statement purposes. Merchandise inventories are
generally valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method.
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Inventories of governmental funds are valued at cost and
recorded using the consumption method. Proprietary
funds expense inventories when used or sold.

For governmental fund financial reporting, inventory
balances are also recorded as a reservation of fund balance
indicating that they do not constitute “available spendable
resources” except for $8.1 million in federally donated
consumable inventories, which are offset by unearned
revenue because they are not earned until they are
distributed to clients.

Prepaid items are those certain types of supplies and/or
services (not inventory) that are acquired or purchased
during an accounting period but not used or consumed
during that accounting period.

In governmental fund type accounts, prepaid items ate
generally accounted for using the purchases method.
Under the purchases method, prepaid items are treated as
expenditures when purchased and residual balances, if any,
at year-end are not accounted for as assets.

In proprietary and trust fund type accounts, prepaid items
are accounted for using the consumption method. The
portion of supplies or services consumed or used during a
period is recorded as an expense. The balance that remains
is reported as an asset until consumed or used.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain cash, investments, and other assets are classified as
restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position and
Balance Sheet because their use is limited by debt
covenants, escrow arrangements, or other regulations.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets are tangible and intangible assets held and
used in state operations, which have a service life of more
than one year and meet the state’s capitalization policy.

It is the state’s policy to capitalize:
e All land, including land use rights with indefinite lives
acquired with the purchase of the underlying land, and

ancillary costs;

e The state highway system operated by the Department
of Transportation;

e Infrastructure, other than the state highway system,
with a cost of $100,000 or more;

e Buildings, building improvements, improvements other
than buildings, and leasehold improvements with a cost
of $100,000 or more;
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e Intangible assets, either purchased or internally
developed, with a cost of $1 million or more that are
identifiable by meeting one of the following conditions:

O The asset is capable of being separated or divided
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, exchanged;

O The asset arises from contractual or other legal
rights, regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable;

e All capital assets acquired with Certificates of
Participation, a debt financing program administered
by the Office of the State Treasurer; and

e All other capital assets with a unit cost (including
ancillary costs) of $5,000 or greater, or collections
with a total cost of $5,000 or greater except for assets
held by the University of Washington (UW). The
capitalization threshold for all other capital assets held
by the UW is $2,000.

Assets acquired by capital leases are capitalized if the
assets’ fair market value meets the state’s capitalization
thresholds described above.

Purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical
records are available and at estimated historical cost where
no historical records exist. Capital asset costs include the
purchase price plus those costs necessary to place the asset
in its intended location and condition for use (ancillary
costs). Normal maintenance and repair costs that do not
materially add to the value or extend the life of the state’s
capital assets are not capitalized.

Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair
market value on the date of donation, plus all approptiate
ancillary costs. When the fair market value is not practically
determinable due to lack of sufficient records, estimated
cost is used. Where necessary, estimates of original cost
and fair market value are derived by factoring price levels
from the current period to the time of acquisition.

The value of assets constructed by agencies for their own
use includes all direct construction costs and indirect costs
that are related to the construction. In enterprise and trust
funds, net interest costs (if material) incurred during the
period of construction are capitalized. In fiscal year 2014,
$103.3 million interest costs were incurred, and $11.7
million net interest costs were capitalized.

State agencies are not required to capitalize art collections,
library reserve collections, and museum and historical
collections that are considered inexhaustible, in that their
value does not diminish over time, if all of the following
conditions are met:
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e The collection is held for public exhibition, education,
or research in furtherance of public service, rather than
financial gain.

e The collection is protected, kept unencumbered, cared
for, and preserved.

e The collection is subject to policy requitements that the
proceeds from sales of collection items be used to
acquire other items for the collection.

Depreciation/amottization is calculated using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Generally, estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings & building components 5-50 years
Furnishings, equipment & collections 3-50 years
Other improvements 3-50 years
Intangibles 3-50 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

The cost and telated accumulated depreciation/
amortization of disposed capital assets are removed from
the accounting records.

The state capitalizes the state highway system as a network
but does not depreciate it since the system is being
preserved approximately at or above a condition level
established by the state. That condition level is
documented and disclosed. Additionally, the highway
system is managed using an asset management system that
includes:

e Maintenance of an up-to-date inventory of system
assets;

e Performance of condition assessments of the assets at
least every three years with summarization of the
results using a measurement scale; and

e Annual estimation of the amount to maintain and
preserve the assets at the condition level established
and disclosed.

All state highway system expenditures that preserve the
useful life of the system are expensed in the period
incurred. Additions and improvements that increase the
capacity or efficiency of the system are capitalized. This
approach of reporting condition instead of depreciating
the highway system is called the modified approach.

For government-wide financial reporting purposes, capital
assets of the state are reported as assets in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column on the
Statement of Net Position. Depreciation/amottization
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expense related to capital assets is reported in the
Statement of Activities.

Capital assets and the related depreciation/amortization
expense are also reported in the proprietary fund financial
statements.

In governmental funds, capital assets are not capitalized in
the accounts that acquire or construct them. Instead,
capital acquisitions and construction are reflected as
expenditures in the year assets are acquired or construction
costs are incurred. No depreciation/amottization is
reported.

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Balance Sheet and Statement of
Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement eclement represents a consumption of fund
equity that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The state only has one item that
qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred
outflow of resources reported in the government-wide and
proprietary fund statements of net position related to debt
refunding. A deferred outflow on refunding results when
the carrying value of refunded debt exceeds its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt.

In addition to liabilities, the Balance Sheet and Statement
of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents an acquisition of fund equity
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The state is reporting two types of deferred inflows:
unavailable revenue and debt refunding,

Unavailable revenue arises only under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, and so is reported only on the
governmental funds balance sheet. Governmental funds
report deferred inflows for unavailable revenues primarily
from two sources: taxes and long-term receivables. These
amounts are recognized as inflows of resources in the
periods that the amounts become available.

A deferred inflow on refunding results when the
reacquisition price of the refunding debt exceeds the net
carrying value of the refunded debt. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the
refunded or refunding debt.
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7. Compensated Absences

State employees accrue vested vacation leave at a variable
rate based on years of service. In general, accrued vacation
leave cannot exceed 240 hours at the employee’s
anniversary date.

Employees accrue sick leave at the rate of one day per
month without limitation on the amount that can be
accumulated. Sick leave is not vested, i.e., the state does
not pay employees for unused sick leave upon termination
except upon employee death or retirement. At death or
retirement, the state is liable for 25 percent of the
employee’s accumulated sick leave. In addition, the state
has a sick leave buyout option in which, each January,
employees who accumulate sick leave in excess of 480
hours may redeem sick leave earned but not taken during
the previous year at the rate of one day’s pay in exchange
for each four days of sick leave.

It is the state’s policy to liquidate its compensated absences
obligation with future resources rather than advance
funding it with available spendable financial resources.

For government-wide reporting purposes, the state reports
compensated absences obligations as liabilities in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns on the Statement of Net Position.

For fund statement teporting purposes, governmental
funds recognize an expenditure for annual and sick leave
when it is payable, i.e., upon employee’s use, resignation,
or retirement. Proprietary and trust funds recognize the
expense and accrue a liability for annual leave and
estimated sick leave buyout, including related payroll taxes
and benefits, as applicable, as the leave is earned.

8. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements, long-term obligations of the state are reported
as liabilities on the Statement of Net Position. Bonds
payable are reported net of applicable original issuance
premium or discount. When material, bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the

bonds.

For governmental fund financial reporting, the face (par)
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums and discounts on original debt issuance
are also reported as other financing sources and uses,
respectively. Issue costs are reported as debt service
expenditures.

9. Fund Equity
In governmental fund type accounts, fund equity is called

“fund balance.” Fund balance is teported in classifications
which reflect the extent to which the state is bound to
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honor constraints on the purposes for which the amounts
can be spent. Classifications include:

e Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that
are either not in a spendable form or are legally or
contractually required to remain intact.

e Restricted fund balance represents amounts for which
constraints are placed on their use by the state
constitution, enabling legislation, or external resource
providers such as creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

e Committed fund balance represents amounts that can
only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by state law as adopted by the
state Legislature. The commitment remains in place
until the Legislature changes or eliminates the state law.

e Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are
intended for a specific purpose by management, but
are neither restricted nor committed. Generally,
assighment is expressed by joint legislative and
executive staff action.

e Unassigned fund balance represents the residual
amount for the General Fund that is not contained in
the other classifications. Additionally, any deficit fund
balance within the other governmental fund types is
reported as unassigned.

When resources meeting more than one of the
classifications (excluding nonspendable) are comingled in
an account, assuming that the expenditure meets the
constraints of the classification, the assumed order of
spending is restricted first, committed second, and finally
assigned.

For government-wide reporting as well as in proprietary
funds, fund equity is called net position. Net position is
comprised of three components: net investment in capital
assets; restricted; and unrestricted.

e Net investment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt
that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources that ate
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets or related debt are
included in this component of net position.

e Restricted net position consists of restricted assets
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted
when constraints are placed on asset use either by
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external parties or by law through constitutional
provision or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the
definition of the two preceding categories.

When both restricted and untestricted resources are
available for use, it is the state’s policy to use restricted
resources first and then use unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

In fiduciary funds, net assets are held in trust for
individuals and external organizations.

E. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Insurance Activities

Workers’ Compensation. Title 51 RCW establishes the
state of Washington’s workers’ compensation program.
The statute requires all employers to secure coverage for
job-related injuries and diseases, with few exceptions,
through the Workers’ Compensation Fund or through
self-insurance.

Direct private insurance is not authorized, although self-
insurers are permitted to reinsure up to 80 percent of their
obligations through private insurers.

The Workers” Compensation Fund, an enterprise fund, is
used to account for the workers’ compensation program
which provides time-loss, medical, vocational, disability,
and pension benefits to qualifying individuals sustaining
work-related injuries or illnesses. The main benefit plans of
the workers” compensation program are funded based on
rates that will keep these plans solvent in accordance with
recognized actuarial principles. The supplemental pension
plan supports cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) granted
for time-loss and disability payments; however, these are
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. By statute, the state is
only allowed to collect enough revenue to fund the current
COLA payments.

Premiums are based on individual employers’ reported
payroll hours and insurance rates based on each
employer’s risk classification(s) and past experience, except
for the Supplemental Pension Fund premiums which are
based on a flat rate per hours worked independent of risk
class or past experience. In addition to its regular premium
plan which is required for all employers, the Workers’
Compensation Fund offers a voluntary retrospective
premium-rating plan under which premiums are subject to
three annual adjustments based on group and individual
employers’ loss experience. Initial adjustments to the
standard premiums are paid to or collected from the
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groups and individual employers approximately ten
months after the end of each plan year.

The Department of Labor and Industries, as administrator
of the workers’ compensation program, establishes claims
liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims
(including future claims adjustment expenses) that have
already occurred. The length of time for which such costs
must be estimated varies depending on the benefit
involved. Because actual claims costs depend on such
complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal
liabilities, claims adjudication, and judgments, the process
used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily
result in an exact amount.

Claims payable are recomputed quarterly using a variety of
actuarial and statistical techniques. These techniques are
used to produce current estimates that reflect recent
settlements, claim frequency, expected inflation, and other
economic, legal, and social factors. Adjustments to claims
payable are charged or credited to claims expense in the
petiods in which they are made.

The Department of Labor and Industries prepares a stand-
alone financial report for its Workers’ Compensation
Program. Copies of the report that include financial
statements and required supplementary information may
be obtained by writing to Washington State Department of
Labor and Industries, PO Box 44833, Olympia,
Washington 98504-4833 or by visiting their website at:
http://www.lni.wa.gov/ClaimsIns/Insurance/I.earn/State

Fund/Reports/Default.asp.

Risk Management. The state of Washington operates a
self-insurance liability program pursuant to RCW 4.92.130.
The state manages its tort claims as an insurance business
activity rather than a general governmental activity. The
state’s policy is generally not to purchase commercial
insurance for the risk of losses to which it is exposed.
Instead, the state’s management believes it is mote
economical to manage its risks internally and set aside
assets for claims settlement in the Risk Management Fund,
an internal service fund. A limited amount of commercial
insurance is purchased for liabilities arising from the
operations of the Washington state ferries, employee
bonds, and to limit the exposure to catastrophic losses.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past ten fiscal
years. Otherwise, the self-insurance lability program
services all claims against the state for injuries and property
damage to third parties. The majority of state funds and
agencies participate in the self-insurance liability program
in proportion to their anticipated exposure to liability
losses.

Health Insurance. The state of Washington administers

and provides medical, dental, basic life, and basic long-
term disability insurance coverage for eligible state
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employees. In addition, the state offers coverage to K-12
school districts, educational service districts, tribal
governments, political subdivisions, and employee
organizations representing state civil service workers. The
state establishes eligibility requirements and approves plan
benefits of all participating health care organizations.
Because the state and its employees are the predominant
participants in the employee health insurance program, it is
accounted for in an internal service fund, the Employee
Insurance Fund.

The state’s share of the cost of coverage for state
employees is based on a per capita amount determined
annually by the Legislature and allocated to state agencies.

The Health Care Authority, as administrator of the health
care benefits program, collects this monthly “premium”
from agencies for each active employee enrolled in the
program. State employees self pay for coverage beyond the
state’s contribution. Cost of coverage for non-state
employees is paid by their respective employers. Most
coverage is available on a self-paid basis to former
employees and employees who are temporarily not in pay
status.

Most coverage is also available on a self-paid basis to
eligible retirees. In accordance with the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 43, an agency fund, the Retiree
Health Insurance Fund, is used to account for the retiree
health insurance program. For additional information,
refer to Note 12,

The state secures commercial insurance for certain
coverage offered, but self-insures the tisk of loss for the
Uniform Medical Plan. The Uniform Medical Plan
enrolled 64 percent of the eligible subscribers in fiscal year
2014. Claims are paid from premiums collected, and claims
through a  third-party

adjudication is  contracted

administrator.

Considerations in calculating liabilities include frequency of
claims, administrative costs, industry inflation trends,
advances in medical technology, and other social and
economic factors. Liabilities include an amount for claims
incurred but not reported.

2. Postemployment Benefits

COBRA. In compliance with federal law, the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985
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(COBRA), the state offers health and dental benefits on a
temporary basis to qualified beneficiaries whose benefit
coverage would otherwise end because of a qualifying
event such as loss of employment. COBRA coverage is
available on a self-paid basis and is the same medical and
dental coverage available to state employees.

Medical Expense Plan. As disclosed in Note 1.D, at the
time of separation from state service due to retirement or
death, the state offers a 25 percent buyout of an
employee’s accumulated sick leave. Individual state
agencies may offer eligible employees a medical expense
plan (MEP) that meets the requirements of the Internal
Revenue Code. Agencies offering an MEP deposit the
retiring employee’s sick leave buyout in the MEP for
reimbursement of medical expenses.

Retirement Benefits. Refer to Note 11 Retirement Plans
and Note 12 Other Postemployment Benefits.

3. Interfund/Interagency Activities

The state engages in two major categoties of interfund/
interagency  activity: reciprocal and nonreciprocal.
Reciprocal interfund/interagency activity is the internal
counterpart to exchange and exchange-like transactions
and includes both interfund loans and services provided
and used. Nonreciprocal activity is nonexchange in natutre
and includes both transfers and reimbursements.

4. Donor-restricted Endowments

The state of Washington reports endowments in higher
education endowment permanent These
accounts are established outside of the state treasury for
use by the higher education institutions. There is no state
law that governs endowment spending; rather, the policies
of individual university and college boards govern the
spending of net appreciation on investments.

accounts.

Under the current spending policy, distributions to
programs approximate an annual percentage rate of 4
percent of a five-year rolling average of the endowment’s
market valuation.

The net appreciation available for authorization for
expenditure by governing boards totaled $546.5 million.
This amount is reported as restricted for expendable
endowment funds on the government-wide Statement of
Net Position.
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Accounting, Reporting, and Entity
Changes

Reporting Changes. Effective for fiscal year 2014
reporting, the state adopted the following new standards
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB):

Statement No. 67 Financial Reporting for Pension Plans,
amending GASB 25. GASB Statement No. 67 relates to
pension plans that are administered through trusts or
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for
the activities of pension plans.

The Department of Retitement Systems (DRS) is the
administrator for all but one of the state administered
pension plans that are subject to Statement No. 67. The
DRS Statement No. 67 compliant stand-alone financial
report may be obtained by contacting the Washington
State Department of Retitement Systems, PO Box 48380,
Olympia, WA 98504-8380 or online at:
http://www.drs.wa.gov.

Implementation of Statement No. 67 reporting
requirements for the Volunteer Fire Fighters” and Reserve
Officers’ Relief and Pension Fund is reflected in Note 11
Retirement Plans.

Statement No. 69 Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations. GASB Statement No. 69 addresses
mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. This
statement did not have an impact on the financial
statements.

Statement No. 70 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. GASB Statement No. 70
requires recognition of a liability when certain factors
indicate that it is more likely than not that the state will be
required to make a payment on a nonexchange financial
guarantee. The statement also specifies information to be
disclosed by the state when it extends nonexchange
financial ~guarantees. The state has extended a
nonexchange financial guarantee on certain debt issued by
state school districts. Statement No. 70 required disclosure
is reflected in Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies.
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Fund Reclassification. During fiscal year 2014, it was
determined that one special revenue fund no longer had a
dedicated revenue source so beginning fund balances were
restated by a reduction of $7 thousand in Nonmajor
Governmental Funds and an increase of $7 thousand in
the Administrative Accounts in the General Fund.

Prior Period Adjustment. The University of Washington
(UW) recorded a prior period adjustment to propetly
report balances related to their Internal Lending Program
which is reported within the Higher Education Student
Services Fund. The adjustment impacted the Higher
Education Special Revenue Fund, a major governmental
fund, with a decrease of $276.1 million, and the Higher
Education Student Services, a major enterprise fund, with
an increase of $74.2 million. The adjustment also increased
pooled cash in an agency fund by $134.6 million.

The UW also posted a beginning balance adjustment to
cotrect for prior errors in recording of the investment of
the UW non-endowed monies. The adjustment increased
fund balance in the Higher Education Special Revenue
Fund, a major governmental fund, by $401.1 million. The
adjustment decreased fund balance of the Higher
Education Endowment Fund, also a major governmental
fund.

The Department of Corrections recorded a prior period
adjustment to record unearned revenue associated with
donations. The adjustment decreased fund balance in
Nonmajor Governmental Funds by $44 thousand.

The state is also reporting for the first time two discrete
component units of the University of Washington:
Northwest Hospital and Valley Medical Center.

Governmental Capital Assets and Long-term
Obligations. The UW recorded a prior period $67.3
million adjustment to governmental long-term obligations
to propetly report their Internal Lending Program.

The Department of Transportation recorded a prior
period adjustment of $244.4 million to governmental long-
term obligations to record a land bank agreement with
Sound Transit. Activities associated with the land bank
agreement are exchange-like transactions where Sound
Transit provides funding for highway improvements in
exchange for future lease credits or conveyance of land of
approximately equal value.
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Fund equity at July 1, 2013, has been restated as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fund equity (deficit) at

Fund equity (deficit)

June 30, 2013, as Fund Prior Period as restated,
previously reported Reclassification Adjustment July 1, 2013
Governmental Funds:
General S 1,382,590 S 7 S - S 1,382,597
Higher Education Special Revenue 2,362,726 - 124,990 2,487,716
Higher Education Endowment 3,378,871 - (401,050) 2,977,821
Nonmajor Governmental 5,300,960 (7) (44) 5,300,909
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:
Workers' Compensation (9,624,819) - - (9,624,819)
Unemployment Compensation 3,469,741 - - 3,469,741
Higher Education Student Services 1,359,209 - 74,188 1,433,397
Guaranteed Education Tuition Program (161,107) - - (161,107)
Nonmajor Enterprise 99,212 - - 99,212
Internal Service Funds 271,285 - - 271,285
Fiduciary Funds:
Private Purpose Trust 4,566 - - 4,566
Local Government Investment Pool 8,734,156 - - 8,734,156
Pension and Other Employee Benefit Plans 74,869,876 - - 74,869,876
Component Units:
Public Stadium 329,627 - - 329,627
Health Benefit Exchange 10,059 - - 10,059
Valley Medical Center - - 205,858 205,858
Northwest Hospital - - 104,128 104,128
Nonmajor Component Units 124,702 - - 124,702
81
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Deposits and Investments
A. DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk
associated with the failure of a depository financial
institution. In the event of a depository financial
institution’s failure, it is the risk that the state would not be
able to recover its deposits or collateralized securities that
are in the possession of the outside parties.

The state minimizes custodial credit risk by restrictions set
forth in state law. Statutes require state agencies to deposit
funds in financial institutions that are physically located in
Washington unless otherwise expressly permitted by
statute and authorized by the Washington Public Deposit
Protection Commission (PDPC). The PDPC, established
under chapter 39.58 of the Revised Code of Washington
(RCW), makes and enforces regulations and administers a
collateral pool program to ensure public funds are
protected if a financial institution becomes insolvent.
Securities pledged are held by a trustee agent for the
benefit of the collateral pool.

At June 30, 2014, $1.17 billion of the state’s deposits with
financial institutions were insured or collateralized, with
the remaining $11.3 million uninsured/uncollateralized.

B. INVESTMENTS - PENSION AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS
(PENSION TRUST FUNDS)

1. Summary of Investment Policies

Under RCW 43.33A.030, trusteeship of the pension trust
funds is vested within the voting members of the
Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The
Legislature has established a standard of care for
investment of these funds in RCW 43.33A.140.
Additionally, the WSIB and its staff must comply with
other state laws, such as the Ethics in Public Service Act,
chapter 42.52 RCW, in making investment decisions and
seeking to meet investment objectives.

The pension trust funds consist of retirement
contributions from employer and employee participants in
the Washington State Retitement System and related
earnings on those contributions. The Retirement System is
administered by the Department of Retitement Systems.
The WSIB has exclusive control of the investment of all
money invested in the pension trust funds.

In accordance with RCW 43.33A.110, the WSIB manages

the pension fund portfolio to achieve maximum return at a
prudent level of risk. The WSIB establishes asset allocation
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targets that must be considered at all times when making
investment decisions. The asset mix may deviate from the
target. Deviations greater than predetermined acceptable
levels require rebalancing back to the target. When an asset
class exceeds its range, the goal of rebalancing is to meet
the target allocation within consideration of the other
remaining asset classes.

Eligible Investments. The WSIB is authorized by statute
as having investment management responsibility for
pension funds. The WSIB is authorized to invest as
provided by statute (chapter 43.33A RCW) and WSIB
policy in the following: U.S. treasury bills; discount notes;
repurchase agreements; reverse repurchase agreements;
banker’s acceptances; commercial paper; guaranteed
investment contracts; U.S. government and agency
(government sponsored corporations eligible for collateral
purposes at the Federal Reserve) securities; non-U.S. dollar
bonds; investment grade corporate bonds; non-investment
grade corporate bonds; publicly traded mortgage-backed
securities; privately placed mortgages; private placements
of corporate debt; U.S. and foreign common stock; U.S.
preferred stock; convertible securities; private equity
including but not limited to investment corporations,
partnerships, and limited liability companies for venture
capital, leveraged buy-outs, real estate, and other tangible
assets, or other forms of private equity; asset-backed
securities; and derivative securities including futures,
options, options on futures, forward contracts, and swap
transactions. There were no violations of these investment
restrictions during fiscal year 2014.

Commingled Trust Fund. Pension trust funds are
invested in the Commingled Trust Fund (CTF). The CTF
is a diversified pool of investments used as an investment
vehicle for 14 separate retitement plans and one
supplemental pension funding account. These plans hold
shares in the CTF which represent a percentage ownership
in the pool of investments. Plans are allowed to purchase
or sell shates in the CTF, based on the fair value of the
underlying assets, on the first business day of each month.

In addition to share ownership in the CTF, each
retirement plan holds short-term investments that are used
to manage each plan’s cash needs.

The CTF consists of the Public Employees’ Retitement
System (PERS) Plans 1 and 2/3, Teachers’ Retitement
System (TRS) Plans 1 and 2/3, School Employees’
Retitement System (SERS) Plans 2/3, Law Enforcement
Officers” and Fire Fighters’ Retitement Plans 1 and 2,
Washington State Patrol Retirement System Plans 1 and 2,
Public Safety Employees’ Retitement System Plan 2,
Volunteer Fire Fighters’ and Reserve Officers’ Relief and
Pension Fund, and the Higher Education Retirement
Supplemental Benefit Fund. PERS Plan 3, TRS Plan 3, and
SERS Plan 3 are hybrid defined benefit/defined
contribution plans. The participants of those plans have
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the option to direct their contributions to the CTF or
invest their defined contributions in other external options
not managed by the WSIB.

CTF Investment Policies and Restrictions. The CTF is
comprised of public markets equities, fixed income
securities, private equity investments, tangible assets, real
estate, and an innovation portfolio. The CTF’s
petformance objective is to exceed the return of two
custom benchmarks, each consisting of public indices
weighted according to asset allocation targets.

The asset allocation for the CTF is formally reviewed at
least every four years. The allocation policy is reviewed
more frequently if there has been a fundamental change in
the structure of the capital markets or in the undetlying
cash flow or liability structure of the pension trust funds.

When market values fall outside policy ranges, assets are
rebalanced first by using normal cash flows and then
through reallocations of assets across asset classes. In cases
of a major rebalancing, the pension trust funds can utilize
futures, forward contracts, and options in order to
maintain exposure within each asset class and reduce
transaction costs. Major rebalancing can occur to bring
asset classes within their target ranges or when the pension
trust funds are transitioning managers.

To achieve the performance and diversification objectives
of the pension trust funds, the public markets equity
program secks to achieve the highest return possible
consistent with prudent risk management and the desire
for downside protection, with passive equity strategies as
the default whenever strategies with better risk/return
profiles cannot be identified; provide diversification to the
pension trust funds’ overall investment program; maintain
liquidity in public equity; and maintain transparency into all
public equity strategies to the extent possible.

The public markets equity portion of the pension trust
funds invests in publicly traded equities globally, including
equity securities in the U.S., developed non-U.S., and
emerging markets. The program has a global benchmark,
currently the Morgan Stanley Capital International All
Country World Investable Market Index. A mix of external
managers approved by the WSIB is used to manage the
program. Passive management delivers broad diversified
equity market exposure at low cost and is used when active
managers cannot be identified and monitored
appropriately. Passive management is also used when it is
considered an appropriate  alternative to  active
management, typically in more efficient markets. Active
management is used when the pension trust funds can
identify, access, and monitor successful managers in
markets that are less efficient. Active management seeks to
enhance the tisk/return profile of the program.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The fixed income segment is managed to achieve the
highest return possible consistent with the desire to
control asset volatility, emphasize high yield to maturity
opportunities to add value through active management,
provide diversification to the overall investment program,
and to meet or exceed the return of the Barclays Capital
Universal Bond Index, with volatility similar to or less than
the index.

RCW 43.33A.140 prohibits a corporate fixed income issue
cost from exceeding 3 percent of the CTF’s market value
at the time of purchase, and 6 percent of its market value
thereafter. However, the WSIB manages with a more
restrictive concentration constraint, limiting exposure to
any corporate issuer to 3 percent of the CTT fixed income
portfolio’s market value at all times.

The fixed income portfolio is constrained by policy from
investing more than 1 percent of the portfolio’s par
holdings in any single issuer with a quality rating below
investment grade (as defined by Batclays Capital Global
Family of Fixed Income Indices). Total market value of
below investment grade credit bonds (as defined by
Barclays Capital Global Family of Fixed Income Indices)
shall not exceed 15 percent of the market value of the
fixed income portfolio. Although below investment grade
mortgage-backed, asset-backed, or commercial mortgage-
backed securities may not be purchased, portfolio holdings
that are downgraded to those levels or are no longer rated
may continue to be held. The total market value of below
investment grade mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and
commercial mortgage-backed securities shall not exceed 5
percent of the market value of the fixed income portfolio.
The duration of the portfolio (the sensitivity of the
portfolio’s fair value to changes in the level of interest
rates) is targeted to be within plus or minus 20 percent of
the duration of the Barclays Capital Universal Index.

The major sector allocations of the fixed income portfolio
are limited to the following ranges: U.S. treasuries and
government agencies — 10 percent to 45 percent, credit
bonds — 10 percent to 80 percent, asset-backed securities —
0 percent to 10 percent, commercial mortgage-backed
securities — 0 percent to 10 percent, and mortgage-backed
securities — 5 percent to 45 percent.

Pension trust funds can be invested in any approptiate
private equity investment opportunity that has the
potential for returns superior to traditional investment
opportunities and which is not prohibited by the WSIB’s
policies or by law. These investment types are generally
divided into venture capital, corporate finance, growth
equity, special situations, distressed, mezzanine, and other
investments. Private equity investments are made through
limited partnership or direct investment vehicles.
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The private equity investment portfolio is managed to
meet or exceed the returns of the Russell 3000 by 300
basis points in the long term. To meet the return and plan
objectives, the private equity portfolio has diversified
investments in companies in a variety of growth stages.
The portfolio also includes a broad cross-section of
opportunities in different industries and geographic
regions.

The primary goal of the tangible asset portfolio is to
generate a long-term, high quality, stable income stream.
The secondary goal is to generate appreciation
approximately commensurate with inflation. The structure
of the investments is primarily targeted to those funds,
separate accounts, or tangible asset operating companies
providing the WSIB with the most robust governance
provisions related to acquisitions, dispositions, debt levels,
and ongoing operational decisions for annual capital
expenditures. The tangible asset portfolio invests in a
number of sectors, but the primary focus is infrastructure,
timber, and natural resource rights (oil and natural gas).

The WSIB’s current return objective for tangible assets
calls for a target benchmark of 4 percent above the U.S.
Consumer Price Index over a long-term investment
horizon defined as at least five years.

The WSIB’s real estate program is an externally managed
pool of selected partnership investments, intended to
provide alternative  portfolio  characteristics ~when
compared to traditional stock and bond investments. The
majority of the WSIB’s partnerships invest in institutional-
quality real estate assets that are leased to third parties. The
income generated from bond-like lease payments coupled
with the hard asset qualities of commercial real estate
combine to generate returns that are expected to fall
between the return expectations for fixed income and
equities over the long term. The real estate portfolio is
managed to deliver risk-adjusted returns that are consistent
with the WSIB’s long-term return expectations for the
asset class.

The WSIB’s real estate partnerships typically invest in
private real estate assets that are held for long-term income
and appreciation. Many of the WSIB’s investment
partnerships do not involve co-investment with other
financial entities, thereby providing the WSIB with control
provisions, related transactions, and ongoing operational
decisions for annual capital expenditures.

Volatility in the real estate portfolio is minimized through a
combination of factors. First, the majority of the WSIB’s
partners own real estate assets in a private investment form
which are not subject to public market volatility. Second,
real estate capital is diversified among a host of partners
with varying investment styles. Third, partnership assets
are invested in numerous economic regions, including
foreign markets, and in various property types. Finally, the
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WSIB’s partners invest at different points within the
properties” capital structure and life cycle.

The WSIB’s real estate portfolio current benchmark seeks
to earn an 8 percent annual investment return over a
rolling 10-year period.

The innovation portfolio investment strategy is to provide
the WSIB with the ability to invest in assets that fall
outside of traditional asset classes and to provide the
WSIB with comfort and demonstrated success before
committing large dollar amounts to the strategy. The
overall benchmark for the innovation portfolio is the
weighted average of the underlying benchmark for each
asset in the portfolio.

Currently, there are three investment strategies in the
innovation portfolio, two involving private partnerships
and one investing in public equities.

2. Unfunded Commitments

The WSIB has entered into a number of agreements that
commit the pension trust funds, upon request, to make
additional investment purchases up to predetermined
amounts. As of June 30, 2014, the pension trust funds had
unfunded commitments of $10.40 billion, $8.43 billion,
$1.12 billion, and $26.8 million in private equity, real estate,
tangible assets, and the innovation portfolio, respectively.

3. Securities Lending

State law and board policy permit the pension trust funds
to patticipate in securities lending programs to augment
investment income. The WSIB has entered into an
agreement with State Street Corporation to act as agent for
the pension trust funds in securities lending transactions.
As State Street Corporation is the custodian bank for the
pension trust funds, it is counterparty to securities lending
transactions.

The fair value of the securities on loan at June 30, 2014,
was approximately $3.64 billion. The pension trust funds
report securities on loan in their respective categories in
the Statement of Net Position. At June 30, 2014, cash
collateral received totaling $1.09 billion is reported as
securities lending obligation, and the fair value of the
reinvested cash collateral totaling $1.09 billion is reported
as security lending collateral in the Statement of Net
Position. Securities received as collateral for which the
pension trust funds do not have the ability to pledge or sell
unless the borrower defaults are not reported as assets and
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Total securities
received as collateral at June 30, 2014, was $2.63 billion.

During the fiscal year, debt and equity securities were

loaned and collateralized by the pension trust funds’ agent
with cash, US. government or U.S. agency securities
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including U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities
(exclusive of letters of credit). When the loaned securities
had collateral denominated in the same currency, the
collateral requirement was 102 percent of the fair value,
including accrued interest, of the securities loaned. All
other securities were required to be collateralized at 105
percent of the fair value, including accrued interest, of the
loaned securities.

The following table summarizes the securities held by the
pension trust funds from reinvestment of cash collateral
and securities received as collateral at June 30, 2014 (in
thousands):

Mortgage-backed $2,407,871
Cash equivalents and other 557,900
Repurchase agreements 555,295
Yankee CD 201,197

Total collateral held $3,722,263

During fiscal year 2014, securities lending transactions
could be terminated on demand by either the pension trust
funds or the borrower. As of June 30, 2014, the cash
collateral held had an average duration of 22.5 days and an
average weighted final maturity of 82.2 days.

Because the securities lending agreements were terminable
at will, their duration did not generally match the duration
of the investments made with the cash collateral. Non-cash
collateral could not be pledged or sold absent borrower
default. No more than 20 percent of the total on loan
value could be held by a specific borrower. Collateral
investment guidelines specifically prohibit European
domiciled holdings. There are no restricions on the
amount of securities that can be lent.

Securities were lent with the agreement that they would be
returned in the future for exchange of the collateral. State
Street Corporation indemnified the pension trust funds by
agreeing to purchase replacement securities or return the
cash collateral in the event a borrower failed to return the
loaned securities or pay distributions thereon. State Street
Cortporation’s  responsibiliies  included — performing
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appropriate  borrower and collateral investment credit
analyses, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral,
and complying with applicable federal regulations
concerning securities lending.

During fiscal year 2014, there were no significant
violations of legal or contractual provisions and no failures
by any borrowers to return loaned securities or to pay
distributions thereon. Further, the pension trust funds
incurred no losses during fiscal year 2014 resulting from a
default by either the borrowers or the securities lending
agents.

4. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates
over time will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The risk is managed within the portfolios
using effective duration, which is the measure of a debt
investment’s exposure to fair value changes arising from
changes in interest rates. Increases in prevailing interest
rates generally translate into decreases in fair values of
those investments.

While the pension trust funds do not have a formal policy
relating to interest rate risk, the pension trust funds’ fixed
income investments are actively managed to meet or
exceed the return of the Barclays Capital Universal Index,
with a duration target within plus or minus 20 percent of
the duration of the portfolio’s performance benchmark. As
of June 30, 2014, the duration of the pension trust funds’
fixed income investments was within the duration target of
this index.

The two schedules below provide information about the
interest rate risks associated with the pension trust funds’
investments as of June 30, 2014. The schedules display
various asset classes held by maturity in years, effective
duration, and credit ratings. All debt securities are reported
using the average life within the portfolio. The average life
is a calculated estimate of the average time (in years) until
maturity for these securities taking into account possible
prepayments of principal.
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Pension Trust Funds

Schedule of Maturities and Effective Duration

June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands) Maturity
Less than 1 More than 10 Effective

Investment Type Fair Value Year 1-5 Years 6-10 Years Years Duration
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities $ 1,623,712 S 422,134 $ 1,125,775 S 75,799 S 4 2.91
Corporate bonds 8,397,009 371,688 3,739,741 3,028,328 1,257,252 5.86
U.S. government and agency securities 7,103,700 900,427 5,528,755 475,115 199,403 3.30
Foreign government and agency securities 1,279,590 96,606 415,249 568,977 198,758 5.01
Total investments categorized 18,404,011 $ 1,790,855 $ 10,809,520 S 4,148,219 S 1,655,417 4.59
Investments not required to be categorized
Cash and cash equivalents 1,816,341
Equity securities 29,790,983
Alternative investments 29,640,342
Total investments not categorized 61,247,666
Total Investments $79,651,677
Credit ratings of investments are presented using the Moody’s rating scale as follows:

Pension Trust Funds

Investment Credit Ratings

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Investment Type
Mortgage
and Other u.s. Foreign
Asset- Government  Government

Moody's Backed Corporate and Agency and Agency Total Fair

Credit Rating Securities Bonds Securities Securities Value

Aaa $ 1,611,718 S 579,365 S 7,103,700 S 275,224 S 9,570,007

Aal - 18,064 - 69,428 87,492

Aa2 - 199,171 - 84,007 283,178

Aa3 - 383,106 - 105,696 488,802

Al 1,285 438,470 - - 439,755

A2 - 536,466 - - 536,466

A3 - 717,510 - 94,950 812,460

Baal 1,385 1,059,033 - 47,116 1,107,534

Baa2 9,324 1,495,374 - 167,446 1,672,144

Baa3 - 1,887,630 - 345,006 2,232,636

Bal or lower - 1,082,820 - 90,717 1,173,537

Total $ 1,623,712 $ 8,397,009 S 7,103,700 S 1,279,590 $18,404,011
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5. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty
to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The pension
trust funds’ investment policies limit the fixed income
securities to investment grade or higher at the time of
purchase. Investment grade securities are those fixed
income securities with a Moody’s rating of Aaa to Baa or a
Standard and Poor’s rating of AAA to BBB. The rated
debt investments of the pension trust funds as of June 30,
2014, wete rated by Moody’s and/ot an equivalent national
rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
investment in a single issuer. The policy of the pension
trust funds states no corporate fixed income issue cost
shall exceed 3 percent of cost at the time of purchase or 6
percent of fair value thereafter of the fund, and no high
yield issues shall exceed 1 percent of cost or 2 percent of
fair value of the fund. There was no concentration of
credit risk exceeding these policy guidelines as of June 30,
2014.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk
that, in the event a depository institution or counterparty
fails, the pension trust funds would not be able to recover
the value of their deposits, investments, or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The pension trust funds do not have a policy relating to
custodial credit risk. The WSIB mitigates custodial credit
risk by having its investment securities (excluding cash,
cash equivalents, and repurchase agreements held as
securities lending collateral) registered and held in the
name of the WSIB for the benefit of the pension trust
funds.

6. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or
a deposit. The pension trust funds do not have a formal
policy to limit foreign currency risk. The WSIB manages
their exposure to fair value loss by requiring their
international securities investment managers to maintain
diversified portfolios by sector and by issuer to limit
foreign currency and security risk.

The following schedule presents the exposure of pension
fund investments to foreign currency risk. The schedule
provides information on deposits and investments held in
various foreign currencies. Private equity and real estate are
presented according to the financial reporting currency of
the individual funds. This is not a presentation of currency
exposure relating to the underlying holdings. The schedule
is stated in U.S. dollars.
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Pension Trust Funds

Foreign Currency Exposure by Country
June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Investment Type

Foreign Currency Cash and Cash Debt Equity Alternative

Denomination Equivalents Securities Securities Assets Total
Australia-Dollar S 9,232 S 405,961 S 522,681 S 28,826 S 966,700
Brazil-Real 357 358,166 105,818 - 464,341
Canada-Dollar 13,324 - 900,026 - 913,350
Chile-Peso - 124,855 4,030 - 128,885
China-Yuan 278 168,980 - - 169,258
Columbia-Peso - 141,446 - - 141,446
Denmark-Krone 64 - 152,082 - 152,146
E.M.U.-Euro 34,862 - 3,336,481 2,633,627 6,004,970
Hong Kong-Dollar 3,664 - 483,688 - 487,352
Hungary-Forint 113 - 7,295 - 7,408
India-Rupee 613 88,901 156,074 - 245,588
Indonesia-Rupiah 179 56,966 63,128 - 120,273
Israel-Shekel 1,479 - 39,670 - 41,149
Japan-Yen 16,239 - 1,938,908 - 1,955,147
Malaysia-Ringgit 187 66,274 37,493 - 103,954
Mexico-Peso 38 129,025 52,258 - 181,321
New Taiwan-Dollar 1,835 - 146,808 - 148,643
New Zealand-Dollar 992 - 14,411 - 15,403
Nigeria-Naira - 47,740 - - 47,740
Norway-Krone 3,520 - 86,444 - 89,964
Philippines-Peso 4 38,843 19,228 - 58,075
Poland-Zloty - - 9,961 - 9,961
Singapore-Dollar 566 - 169,637 - 170,203
South Africa-Rand (21) - 90,188 - 90,167
South Korea-Won 227 - 115,453 - 115,680
Sweden-Krona 2,865 - 346,171 - 349,036
Switzerland-Franc 216 - 1,019,159 - 1,019,375
Thailand-Baht 133 47,116 48,119 - 95,368
Turkey-Lira 163 68,863 65,084 - 134,110
United Kingdom-Pound 10,515 - 2,463,312 - 2,473,827
Uruguay-Peso - 53,138 - - 53,138
Total S 101,644 S 1,796,274 $ 12,393,607 S 2,662,453 $ 16,953,978

7. Derivatives

Pension trust funds are authorized to utilize various
derivative financial instruments, including financial futures,
forward contracts, interest rate swaps, credit default swaps,
equity swaps, and options. Derivative transactions involve,
to varying degrees, market and credit risk. At June 30,
2014, the pension trust funds held investments in financial
futures and forward currency contracts that are recorded at
fair value with changes in value recognized in investment
income in the Statement of Changes in Net Position in the
petiod of change. The derivative instruments ate
considered investment derivatives and not hedging
derivatives.
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Derivatives ate generally used to achieve the desired
market exposure of a security, index, or currency; adjust
portfolio duration; or rebalance the total portfolio to the
target asset allocation. Derivative contracts are instruments
that derive their value from underlying assets, indices,
reference interest rates, or a combination of these factors.

A derivative instrument could be a contract negotiated on
behalf of the pension trust funds and a specific
counterparty. This would typically be referred to as an
“over the counter (OTC) contract,” such as forward
contracts. Alternatively, a derivative instrument, such as
futures, could be listed and traded on an exchange and
referred to as “exchange traded.”
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Inherent in the use of OTC derivatives, the pension trust
funds are exposed to counterparty credit risk on all open
OTC positions. Counterparty credit risk is the risk that a
derivative counterparty may fail to meet its payment
obligation under the derivative contract. As of June 30,
2014, the pension trust funds counterparty risk was not
deemed to be significant.

Futures contracts are standardized, exchange-traded
contracts to purchase or sell a specific financial instrument
at a predetermined price. Gains and losses on fututres
contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying)
principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the
specific instrument. The exchange assumes the risk that
the counterparty will not pay and requires margin
payments to minimize such risk. Futures are generally used
to achieve the desired market exposure of a security or
index or to rebalance the total portfolio.

Forward cutrency contracts are agreements to exchange
the currency of one country for the currency of another
country at an agreed-upon price and settlement date.
These forward commitments are not standardized and
catry counterparty credit risk due to the possible
nonperformance by one of the counterparties. The
maximum potential loss is the aggregate face value in U.S.

dollars at the time the contract was opened; however, the
likelihood of such loss is remote.

At June 30, 2014, the pension trust funds had outstanding
forward currency contracts with a net unrealized gain of
$14.8 million. The aggregate forward currency exchange
contracts receivable and payable were $1.05 billion and
$1.04 billion, respectively. The contracts have varying
maturity dates ranging from July 31, 2014, to September
17,2014.

At June 30, 2014, the pension trust funds’ fixed income
portfolio held derivative securities consisting of
collateralized mortgage obligations with a fair value of
$163.3 million. Domestic and foreign passive equity index
fund managers may also utilize various derivative securities
to manage exposure to risk and increase portfolio returns.
Information on the extent of use and holdings of
derivative securities by passive equity index fund managers
is unavailable.

Derivatives which are exchange traded are not subject to
credit risk. The counterparty credit ratings for forward
currency contracts that are subject to credit risk
outstanding at June 30, 2014, had a credit rating of no less
than Baal using Moody’s rating scale.

The following schedule presents the significant terms for derivatives held as investments by the pension trust funds:

Pension Trust Funds
Derivative Investments
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Changes in Fair

Value - Included in Fair Value -
Investment Investment
Income (Loss) Derivative
Amount Amount Notional
Futures Contracts:
Bond index futures $ 20,161 S 3,391 S 769,300
Equity index futures 18,310 (195) 541
Total S 38,471 S 3,196 S 769,841
Forward Currency Contracts:
Australia-Dollar S (1,965) S (564) S 29,266
Canada-Dollar 5,102 7,107 247,924
Denmark-Krone 3,822 (50) 10,381
E.M.U.-Euro (12,830) (1,104) 190,459
Hong Kong-Dollar (139) 3 17,526
Israel-Shekel (230) (52) 5,182
Japan-Yen 4,713 (1,045) 133,181
New Zealand-Dollar 19,092 4,537 152,364
Norway-Krone (47) 341 16,290
Singapore-Dollar 757 (1) 68
Sweden-Krona 132 (3) 70,159
Switzerland-Franc 790 (255) 29,397
United Kingdom-Pound 11,695 2,292 133,849
Miscellaneous 37 - -
Total $ 30,929 $ 11,206 $ 1,036,046

8. Reverse Repurchase Agreements — None.
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C.INVESTMENTS - WORKERS'
COMPENSATION FUND

1. Summary of Investment Policies

Under RCW 43.33A.030, trusteeship of the Workers’
Compensation Fund investments is vested in the voting
members of the Washington State Investment Board
(WSIB). The Legislature established a standard of care for
investment of these funds in RCW 43.33A.140.
Additionally, the WSIB and its staff must comply with
other state laws, such as the Ethics in Public Service Act,
chapter 42.52 RCW, in making investment decisions and
seeking to meet investment objectives.

The Workers” Compensation Fund consists  of
contributions from employers and their employees
participating in the state workers’ compensation program,
and related earnings on those contributions. The workers’
compensation program provides medical, time-loss, and
disability benefit payments to qualifying individuals
sustaining work-related injuries.

In accordance with state laws, the Workers” Compensation
Fund investments are managed to limit fluctuations in the
industrial insurance premiums and, subject to this purpose,
achieve a maximum return at a prudent level of risk. Based
on this requirement, the order of the objectives is:

e Maintain the solvency of the funds.

e Maintain premium rate stability.

e Ensure sufficient assets are available to fund the
expected liability payments.

e Subject to the objectives above, achieve a maximum
return at a prudent level of risk.

Eligible Investments. Eligible investments are securities
and deposits that are in accordance with the WSIB’s
investment policy and chapter 43.33A° RCW. Eligible
investments include:

e US. equities.

e International equities.

e U.S. treasuries and government agencies.

e Credit bonds.

e Mortgage-backed securities rated investment grade, as

defined by Barclays Capital Global Family of Fixed
Income Indices.
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e Asset-backed securities rated investment grade, as
defined by Barclays Capital Global Family of Fixed
Income Indices.

e Commercial — mortgage-backed  securities  rated
investment grade, as defined by Barclays Capital Global
Family of Fixed Income Indices.

e Investment grade non-U.S. dollar bonds.

Investment Restrictions. To meet stated objectives,
investments of the Workers’ Compensation Fund are
subject to the following constraints:

e All assets under the management of the WSIB are to
be invested to maximize return at a prudent level of
risk in accordance with RCW 43.33A.110 and RCW
43.33A.140.

e No corporate fixed income issue cost shall exceed 3
percent of the fund’s fair value at the time of purchase,
nor shall its fair value exceed 6 percent of the fund’s
fair value at any time.

e Asset allocations are to be reviewed every three to four
years or sooner if there are significant changes in
funding levels or the liability durations.

e Assets are to be rebalanced across asset classes when
the fair value of the assets falls outside the policy
ranges. The timing of any rebalancing will be based on
market opportunities, cash flows, and the consideration
of transaction costs; therefore, they need not occur
immediately.

e Secctor allocation for U.S. equities should be within a
range of 55 percent to 65 percent. Allocation for
international equities should be within a range of 35
percent to 45 percent.

e The benchmark and structure for U.S. equities will be
the broad U.S. stock market as defined by the Morgan
Stanley Capital International (MSCI) U.S. Investable
Market Index. The benchmark and structure for
international equities will be the MSCI All Country
World Ex U.S. Investable Market Index. Both
portfolios will be 100 percent passively managed in
commingled index funds. The commingled funds may
use futures for hedging or establishing a long position.

e Sector allocation of fixed income investments must be
managed within the following prescribed ranges: U.S.
treasuries and government agencies — 5 percent to 25
percent, credit bonds — 20 percent to 80 percent, asset-
backed securities — O percent to 10 percent, commercial
mortgage-backed securities — 0 percent to 10 percent,
and mortgage-backed securities — 0 percent to 25
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percent. These targets are long-term in nature.
Deviations may occur in the short term as a result of
interim market conditions. However, if a range is
exceeded, the portfolios must be rebalanced to the
target allocations as soon as it is practical.

e Total market value of below investment grade credit
bonds (as defined by Barclays Capital Global Family of
Fixed Income Indices) shall not exceed 5 percent of
the total market value of the funds. Although below
investment grade mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and
commercial mortgage-backed securities may not be
purchased, portfolio holdings that are downgraded to
those levels or are no longer rated may continue to be
held. Total market value of below investment grade
mortgage-backed, asset-backed, and commercial
mortgage-backed securities shall not exceed 5 percent
of total market value of the funds.

2. Securities Lending

State law and WSIB policy permit the Workers’
Compensation Fund to participate in securities lending
programs to augment investment income. The WSIB has
entered into an agreement with State Street Corporation to
act as agent for the Workers’ Compensation Fund in
securities lending transactions. As State Street Corporation
is the custodian bank for the Workers’ Compensation
Fund, it is counterparty to securities lending transactions.

The fair value of the securities on loan at June 30, 2014,
was approximately $69.4 million. The Workers’
Compensation Fund reports securities on loan in the
Statement of Net Position in their respective categories. At
June 30, 2014, cash collateral received totaling $4.1 million
is reported as a securities lending obligation, and the fair
value of the reinvested cash collateral totaling $4.1 million
is reported as security lending collateral in the Statement of
Net Position. Securities received as collateral for which the
Workers” Compensation Fund does not have the ability to
pledge or sell unless the borrower defaults are not reported
as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Total securities received as collateral at June 30, 2014, was
$66.9 million.

During fiscal year 2014, debt securities were loaned and
collateralized by the Workers” Compensation Fund's agent
with cash and U.S. government or U.S. agency securities
including U.S. agency mortgage-backed
(exclusive of letters of credit). When the loaned securities
had collateral denominated in the same currency, the
collateral requirement was 102 percent of the fair value,
including accrued interest, of the securities loaned. All
other securities were required to be collateralized at 105
percent of the fair value, including accrued interest, of the
loaned securities.

securities
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The following table summarizes the securities held from
reinvestment of cash collateral and securities received as
collateral at June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Mortgage-backed $66,867
Repurchase agreements 2,093
Cash equivalents and other 1,264
Yankee CD 758

Total collateral held $70,982

During fiscal year 2014, securities lending transactions
could be terminated on demand by either the Workers’
Compensation Fund or the borrower. As of June 30, 2014,
the cash collateral held had an average duration of 22.5
days and an average weighted final maturity of 82.2 days.
Because the securities lending agreements were terminable
at will, their duration did not generally match the duration
of the investments made with the cash collateral. Non-cash
collateral could not be pledged or sold absent borrower
default. No more than 20 percent of the total on loan
value can be held by a specific borrower. Collateral
investment guidelines specifically prohibit European
domiciled holdings. There are no restricions on the
amount of securities that can be lent.

Securities were lent with the agreement that they would be
returned in the future for exchange of the collateral. State
Street  Corporation  indemnified  the — Workers’
Compensation Fund by agreeing to putrchase replacement
securities or return the cash collateral in the event a
borrower failed to return the loaned securities or pay
distributions  thereon.  State  Street  Corporation’s
responsibilities included performing appropriate borrower
and collateral investment credit analyses, demanding
adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with
applicable federal regulations concerning securities lending,

During fiscal year 2014, there were no significant
violations of legal or contractual provisions, no failures by
any borrowers to return loaned securities or to pay
distributions thereon. Further, the Workers” Compensation
Fund incurred no losses during fiscal year 2014 resulting
from a default by either the borrowers or the securities
lending agents.

3. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates
over time will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. While the Workers’ Compensation Fund does
not have a formal policy relating to interest rate risk, the
risk is managed within the Workers” Compensation Fund
portfolio using effective duration which is the measure of a
debt investment’s exposure to fair value changes arising
from changes in interest rates. Increases in prevailing
interest rates generally translate into decreases in fair values
of those investments. As of June 30, 2014, the Workers’
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Compensation Fund portfolio durations were within the
prescribed duration targets.

The two schedules below provide information about the
interest rate risks associated with the Workers’
Compensation Fund investments as of June 30, 2014. The

schedules display vatious asset classes held by maturity in
years, effective duration, and credit ratings. All debt
securities are reported using the average life within the
portfolio. The average life is a calculated estimate of the
average time (in years) until maturity for these securities
taking into account possible prepayments of principal.

Workers' Compensation Fund

Schedule of Maturities and Effective Duration
June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Maturity
Less than More than Effective

Investment Type Fair Value 1Year 1-5Years 6-10 Years 10 Years Duration
Mortgage and other asset-backed securities $ 2,066,899 S 76,875 S 1,667,484 S 264,417 $ 58,123 3.63
Corporate bonds 8,660,211 275,063 3,494,935 1,668,569 3,221,644 7.59
U.S. government and agency securities 1,075,340 70,022 974,154 31,164 - 3.46
Foreign government and agencies 507,173 48,136 213,168 190,870 54,999 5.40
Total investments categorized 12,309,623 $ 470,096 S 6,349,741 $ 2,155,020 $ 3,334,766 6.48
Investments not required to be categorized

Commingled investment trusts 1,886,836

Cash and cash equivalents 306,092

Total investments not categorized 2,192,928

Total Investments $ 14,502,551
Investments with multiple credit ratings are presented using the Moody’s rating scale as follows:

Workers' Compensation Fund

Investment Credit Ratings

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Investment Type
Mortgage and U.S. Government Foreign

Moody's Equivalent Other Asset- and Agency Government and

Credit Rating Backed Securities Corporate Bonds Securities Agencies Total Fair Value
Aaa S 2,016,472 S 381,324 S 1,075,340 S 212,325 S 3,685,461
Aa2 - 52,623 - 95,857 148,480
Aa3 50,427 1,152,991 - 62,584 1,266,002
Al - 791,003 - 38,805 829,808
A2 - 1,176,508 - - 1,176,508
A3 - 1,293,549 - - 1,293,549
Baal - 1,276,628 - 17,340 1,293,968
Baa2 - 1,502,409 - 10,865 1,513,274
Baa3 - 757,247 - 69,397 826,644
Bal or lower - 275,929 - - 275,929
Total S 2,066,899 S 8,660,211 S 1,075,340 S 507,173 S 12,309,623
92
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4., Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty
to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
Workers” Compensation Fund investment policies limit
the fixed income securities to investment grade or higher
at the time of purchase. Investment grade securities are
those fixed income securities with a Moody’s rating of Aaa
to Baa or a Standard and Poor’s rating of AAA to BBB.

The rated debt investments of the Workers” Compensation
Fund as of June 30, 2014, wete rated by Moody’s and/or
an equivalent national rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
investment in a single issuer. The Workers’ Compensation
Fund policy states that no corporate fixed income issue
cost shall exceed 3 percent of the fund’s fair value at the
time of purchase, nor shall its fair value exceed 6 percent
of the fund’s fair value at any time. There was no
concentration of credit risk as of June 30, 2014.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk
that, in the event a depository institution or counterparty
fails, the Workers’ Compensation Fund would not be able
to recover the value of its deposits, investments, or
collateral securities. The Workers’ Compensation Fund
does not have a policy relating to custodial credit risk. The
WSIB mitigates custodial credit risk by having its
investment securities (excluding cash, cash equivalents, and
repurchase agreements held as securities lending collateral)
registered and held in the name of the WSIB for the
benefit of the Workers” Compensation Fund.

5. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange
rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or
a deposit. The Workers’ Compensation Fund does not
have a formal policy to limit foreign currency risk. At June
30, 2014, the only securities held by the Workers’
Compensation Fund with potential foreign currency
exposure were $682.4 million invested in an international
commingled equity index fund.

6. Derivatives

To manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and
currency rates while increasing portfolio returns, the
Workers’ Compensation Fund is authorized to utilize
various  derivative  financial instruments  including
collateralized mortgage obligations, financial futures,
forward contracts, interest rate and equity swaps, and
options. Derivative transactions involve, to vatying
degrees, market and credit risk. The Workers’
Compensation Fund mitigates matket risks arising from
derivative transactions by requiring collateral in cash and
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investments to be maintained equal to the securities
positions outstanding, and thereby prohibiting the use of
leverage or speculation. Credit risks arising from derivative
transactions are mitigated by selecting and monitoring
creditworthy counterparties and collateral issuers.

Domestic and foreign passive equity index fund managers
may also utilize various derivative securities to manage
exposure to risk and increase portfolio returns.
Information on the extent of use and holdings of
derivative securities by passive equity index fund managers
is unavailable.

At June 30, 2014, the only derivative securities held directly
by the Workers” Compensation Fund were collateralized
mortgage obligations of $1.47 billion.

7. Reverse Repurchase Agreements - None.

D. INVESTMENTS - LOCAL GOVERNMENT
INVESTMENT POOL

1. Summary of Investment Policies

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is
managed and operated by the Office of the State Treasurer
(OST). The State Finance Committee is the administrator
of the statute that created the pool and adopts approptiate
rules. The state treasurer is responsible for establishing the
investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy
annually. Any proposed changes are reviewed by the LGIP
Advisory Committee. The terms of the policy are designed
to ensure the safety and liquidity of the funds deposited in
the LGIP.

The state treasurer and designated investment officers shall
adhere to all restrictions on the investment of funds
established by law and by policy.

The LGIP portfolio is invested in a manner generally
consistent with Rule 2a-7 money market funds, as
currently recognized by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (17CFR.270.2a-7). Rule 2a-7 funds are
limited to high quality obligations with limited maximum
and average maturities, the effect of which is to minimize
both market and credit risk.

Investments, other than bank deposits, are valued at
amortized cost. The bank deposits are valued at historical
cost. Both valuation methods approximate fair value.
Security transactions are reported on a trade date basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Investment Objectives. The objectives of the LGIP

investment policy, in priority order, are safety, liquidity,
and return on investment.
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Safety of principal is the primary objective. Investments
shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.

The investment portfolio will remain liquid to enable the
state treasurer to meet all cash requirements that might
reasonably be anticipated.

The LGIP will be structured with the objective of attaining
a market rate of return throughout budgetary and
economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk
parameters and the cash flow characteristics of the pool.

Eligible Investments. Eligible investments are only those
securities and deposits authorized by statute (chapters
39.58, 39.59, and 43.84.080 RCW). Eligible investments
include:

e Obligations of the U.S. government.

e Obligations of U.S. government agencies or of
corporations wholly owned by the U.S. government.

e Obligations of government-sponsored corporations
that are or may become eligible as collateral for
advances to member banks as determined by the board
of governors of the Federal Reserve.

e Banker’s acceptances purchased on the secondary
market rated with the highest short-term credit rating
of any two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating
Organizations (NRSROs) at the time of purchase. If
the banker’s acceptance is rated by more than two
NRSROs, it must have the highest rating from all of
the organizations.

e Commercial paper provided that the OST adheres with
policies and procedures of the Washington State
Investment Board regarding commercial paper (RCW
43.84.080(7)).

e Certificates of deposit or demand deposits with
financial institutions qualified by the Washington
Public Deposit Protection Commission.

e Obligations of the state of Washington or its political
subdivisions.

Investment Restrictions. To provide for safety and
liquidity of funds, the LGIP policy places the following
restrictions on the investment portfolio:

e Investments are restricted to fixed rate securities that
mature in 397 days or less, except securities utilized in
repurchase agreements and U.S. government floating
or variable rate notes which may have a maximum
maturity of 762 days, provided they have reset dates
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within one year and that on any reset date can
reasonably be expected to have a fair value that
approximates their amortized cost.

e The weighted average maturity of the portfolio will not
exceed 60 days.

e The weighted average life of the portfolio will not
exceed 120 days.

e The purchase of investments in securities other than
those issued by the U.S. government or its agencies will
be limited.

e (Cash generated through securities lending or reverse
repurchase agreement transactions will not increase the
dollar amount of specified investment types beyond
stated limits.

2. Securities Lending

State statutes permit the LGIP to lend its securities to
broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous
agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in
the future. The LGIP has contracted with Citibank, N.A.
as a lending agent and receives a share of income earned
from this activity. The lending agent lends securities and
receives collateral, which can be in the form of cash or
other securities. The collateral, which must be valued at
102 percent of the fair value of the loaned securities, is
priced daily and, if necessary, action is taken to maintain
the collateralization level at 102 percent. Cash collateral
received from the lending of non coupon-bearing
securities shall not be valued at less than 102 percent of
fair value, not to exceed pat.

The cash is invested by the lending agent in accordance
with investment guidelines approved by the LGIP. The
securities held as collateral and the securities underlying the
cash collateral are held by the LGIP’s custodian. One
option available to the lending agent is to invest cash
collateral with the LGIP. Maturities of investments made
with cash collateral are generally matched to maturities of
securities loaned.

During fiscal year 2014, the LGIP lent U.S. Agency and
Treasury securities. Cash collateral was reinvested in
repurchase agreements and interest bearing bank deposits.
At fiscal year end, there were no securities on loan.

The LGIP investment policy requires that any secutities on
loan be made available by the lending agent for next day
liquidity at the option of the LGIP. During fiscal year
2014, the LGIP had no credit risk exposure to borrowers
because the amounts owed to the botrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed the LGIP. Furthermore,
contracts require the lending agent to indemnify the LGIP
if the borrowers fail to return securities and if collateral is
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inadequate to replace the securities lent, or if the borrower
fails to pay the LGIP for income distribution by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.

The LGIP cannot pledge or sell collateral securities
received unless the borrower defaults. The LGIP
investment policy limits the amount of reverse repurchase
agreements and securities lending to 30 percent of the total
portfolio. There were no violations of legal or contractual
provisions and no losses resulting from a default of a
borrower or lending agent during the fiscal year.

3. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of
debt instruments will adversely affect the fair value of an

investment. The LGIP portfolio is invested in a manner
generally consistent with the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act
of 1940, as it currently stands, i.e., money market funds.
To a great extent, the Rule 2a-7 investment guidelines and
LGIP policy restrictions are directed towards limiting
interest rate risk in order to maintain a stable net asset
value. As of June 30, 2014, the LGIP had a weighted
average maturity of 30 days and a weighted average life of
85 days.

The following schedule presents the LGIP investments
and related maturities, and provides information about the
associated interest rate risks as of June 30, 2014:

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Maturity

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 Year 1-5 Years

U.S. agency obligations S 8,286,216 S 7,667,646 S 618,570
U.S. government obligations 649,887 349,930 299,957
Repurchase agreements 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Interest bearing bank accounts 958,200 958,200 -
Certificates of deposit and other 62,451 62,451 -
Total S 11,156,754 S 10,238,227 S 918,527

4. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty
to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The LGIP
investment policy limits the types of securities available for
investment to obligations of the U.S. government or its
agencies,  obligations  of  government-sponsored
corporations, banket’s acceptances, commercial paper,
deposits with qualified public depositaries, and obligations
of the state of Washington or its political subdivisions.

Banker’s acceptances and commercial paper must be rated
with the highest short-term credit rating of any two
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations at
the time of purchase. The LGIP currently does not have
any banket’s acceptances, commercial paper, or municipal
bonds in its portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk
that, in the event a depository institution or counterparty
fails, the LGIP will not be able to recover the value of its
deposits, investments, or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The LGIP investment
policy requitres that securities purchased by the office be
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held by the master custodian, acting as an independent
third party, in its safekeeping or trust department.
Securities utilized in repurchase agreements are subject to
additional restrictions. These restrictions are designed to
limit the LGIP’s exposure to risk and insure the safety of
the investment. All securities utilized in repurchase
agreements were rated AAA by Moody’s and AA+ by
Standard & Poor’s. The fair value of securities utilized in
repurchase agreements must be at least 102 percent of the
value of the repurchase agreement.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The LGIP
mitigates concentration of credit risk by limiting the
purchase of securities of any one issuer, with the exception
of U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities, to no more
than 5 percent of the portfolio.

Repurchase agreements comprise 10.8 percent of the total
portfolio as of June 30, 2014. The LGIP limits the
securities utilized in repurchase agreements to U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Agency securities. The LGIP requires
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delivery of all securities utilized in repurchase agreements
and the securities are priced daily.

As of June 30, 2014, U.S. Treasury securities comprised 5.8
percent of the total portfolio. US. Agency securities
comprised 74.3 percent of the total portfolio, including
Federal Home Loan Bank (63.6 percent), Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation (0.9 percent), Federal Farm
Credit Bank (8.9 percent), and Federal National Mortgage
Association (0.9 percent).

5. Foreign Currency Risk - None.
6. Derivatives - None.

7. Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase
Agreements

The fair value plus accrued income of mortgage-backed
securities utilized in repurchase agreements with more than
seven days remaining until maturity will be 105 percent of
the value of the repurchase agreement. The fair value plus
accrued income of all other securities utilized in repurchase
agreements will be 102 percent of the value of the
repurchase agreement.

The securities utilized in repurchase agreements are priced
daily and held by the LGIP’s custodian in the state’s name.
Collateralized mortgage obligations utilized in repurchase
agreements must pass the Federal Financial Institutions
Examination Council test, or not exceed a volatility rating
of V-5 by Fitch Investor Services, ot a similar rating of a
nationally recognized rating agency. As of June 30, 2014,
repurchase agreements totaled $1.20 billion.

State law also permits the LGIP to enter into reverse
repurchase agreements which are, by contract, sales of
securities with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
them in the future at the same price plus a contract rate of
interest. The fair value of the securities pledged as
collateral by the LGIP underlying the reverse repurchase
agreements normally exceeds the cash received, providing
the dealers a margin against a decline in the fair value of
the securities.

If the dealers default on their obligations to resell these
securities to the LGIP or to provide equal value in
securities ot cash, the LGIP would suffer an economic loss
equal to the difference between the fair value plus accrued
interest of the underlying securities and the agreement
obligation, including accrued interest. During fiscal year
2014, the LGIP did not enter into any reverse repurchase
agreements.
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E. INVESTMENTS - HIGHER EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE, ENDOWMENT, AND
STUDENT SERVICES FUNDS

1. Summary of Investment Policies

The investments of the University of Washington
represent 71 percent of the total investments in Higher
Education Special Revenue, Endowment, and Student
Services Funds.

The Board of Regents of the University of Washington is
responsible for the management of the University’s
investments. The board establishes investment policy,
which is carried out by the Chief Investment Officet.

The University of Washington Investment Committee,
comprised of board members and investment
professionals, advises on matters relating to the
management of the University’s investment portfolios.

The majority of the University’s investments are insured,
registered, and held by the University’s custodial bank as
an agent for the University. Investments not held by the
custodian  include venture capital, private equity,
opportunistic  investments, marketable  alternatives,
mortgages, real assets, and miscellaneous investments.

The University combines most short-term cash balances in
the Invested Funds Pool. At June 30, 2014, the Invested
Funds Pool totaled $1.61 billion. The fund also owns units
in the Consolidated Endowment Fund valued at $668.9
million on June 30, 2014.

By University policy, departments with qualifying funds in
the Invested Funds Pool receive distributions based on
their average balances and on the type of balance. Campus
depositors received 2 percent in fiscal year 2014.
Endowment operating and gift accounts received 3
percent in fiscal year 2014 with the distributions directed
to University Advancement. The difference between the
actual earnings of the Invested Funds Pool and the
calculated distributions is used to support activities
benefiting all University departments.

The majority of the endowed funds are invested in a
pooled fund called the Consolidated Endowment Fund
(CEF). Individual endowments purchase units in the pool
on the basis of a per unit valuation of the CEF at fair value
on the last business day of the calendar quarter. Income is
distributed based on the number of units held. Chapter
24.55 RCW and the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act allow for total return expenditure
in the CEF under comprehensive prudent standards.
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Under the CEF spending policy approved by the Board of
Regents, quarterly distributions to programs are based on
an annual percentage rate of 4 percent applied to the five-
year rolling average of the CEI’s market valuation.
Additionally, the policy allows for an administrative fee of
1 percent supporting campus-wide fundraising and
stewardship activities and offsetting the internal cost of
managing endowment assets.

The University records its permanent endowments at the
lower of original gift value or current market value in the
Restricted Nonexpendable Net Position category. Of the
endowments that are recorded at current market value, the
net deficiency from the original gift value is $4.7 million at
June 30, 2014.

Funds in irrevocable trusts managed by trustees other than
the University are not reported in the financial statements.
The fair value of these funds was $111.8 million at June 30,

2014. Income received from these trusts, which is included
in investment income, was $2.3 million for the year ended
June 30, 2014.

Net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of
investments includes both realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments. The University realized net
gains of $58.7 million in 2014 from the sale of
investments.

The calculation of realized gains and losses is independent
of the net appreciation of the fair value of investments.
Realized gains and losses on investments that have been
held in more than one fiscal year and are sold in the
current year include the net appreciation of these
investments reported in the prior year(s). The net
appreciation in the fair value of investments during the
year ended June 30, 2014, was $397.9 million.

The following schedule presents the fair value of the University’s investments by type at June 30, 2014:

University of Washington
June 30, 2014
(expressed in thousands)

Investment Type

Cash equivalents

Fixed income

Equity

Non-marketable alternatives
Absolute return

Real assets

Miscellaneous

Total

Fair Value

$ 3,394
1,972,553
1,672,262

349,778
509,476
219,069
4,724

$ 4,731,256

2. Funding Commitments

The University enters into contracts with investment
managers to fund alternative investments. As of June 30,
2014, the University had outstanding commitments to
fund alternative investments in the amount of $262.2
million.

3. Securities Lending

The University’s investment policies permit it to lend its
securities to broker dealers and other entities. As of June
30, 2014, the University had no securities on loan.

4. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates
will adversely affect the fair value of fixed income
securities. The University manages interest rate risk
through its investment policies and the investment
guidelines established with each manager. Each fixed
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income manager is assigned a maximum boundary for
duration as compared to the manager’s relevant
benchmark index. The goal is to allow ample freedom for
the manager to perform while controlling the interest rate
risk in the portfolio.

Effective duration is a commonly used measure of interest
rate risk. The longer the duration, the more sensitive the
portfolio is to changes in interest rates. The weighted
average effective duration of the University’s fixed income
portfolio was 1.91 years at June 30, 2014.

5. Credit Risk

Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is
the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to a financial
instrument will not fulfill its obligations, or that negative
petceptions of the issuet’s ability to make these payments
will cause prices to decline.
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The University’s investment policies limit fixed income
exposute to investment grade assets. The investment
policy for the Invested Funds’ cash pool requires each
manager to maintain an average quality rating of AA as
issued by a nationally recognized rating organization. The
investment policy for the Invested Funds’ liquidity pool
requires each manager to maintain an average quality rating
of A and to hold at least 25 percent of their portfolios in
government and government agency issues.

The investment policy for the CEF reflects its long-term
nature by specifying average quality rating levels by
individual manager, but still restricting investments to
investment grade credits.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk
that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the University will not be able to recover the
value of the investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The University does
not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk.

However, all University investments in the CEF and the
Invested Funds Pool are held in the name of the
University and are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
investment in a single issuer. The CEF investment policy
limits concentration by manager, country (other than U.S.),
and matket sector. The University further mitigates
concentration of credit risk through the due diligence of
each manager and careful monitoring of asset
concentrations.

The composition of the fixed income securities at June 30,
2014, along with credit quality and effective duration
measures is summatized below. The schedule excludes
$35.8 million of fixed income securities held outside the
CEF and the Invested Funds Pool, which makes up 1.81
percent of the University’s investments.

University of Washington

Invested Funds Pool and Consolidated Endowment Fund
Fixed Income Credit Quality and Effective Duration

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands, duration in years)

u.s. Investment Non-Invest- Duration
Not Rated Total K

Investments Government Grade ment Grade (in years)
U.S. treasuries S 877,812 § - S - S - S 877,812 1.94
U.S. government agency 597,761 - - - 597,761 1.91
Mortgage-backed - 103,105 93,889 - 196,994 2.20
Asset-backed - 178,075 8,495 1,281 187,851 0.94
Corporate and other - 79,195 549 - 79,744 3.03
Total S 1,475,573 $ 360,375 $ 102,933 S 1,281 $ 1,940,162 1.91

6. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments classes that can include foreign currency exposure. To

denominated in foreign currencies may lose value due to
adverse fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar relative
to foreign currencies. The University’s investment policies
permit investments in international equity and other asset
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manage foreign currency exposure, the University also
enters into foreign currency forward contracts, futures
contracts, and options. The University held non-U.S.
denominated securities at June 30, 2014, of $1.03 billion.
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The following schedule details the market value of foreign denominated securities by cutrency type:

University of Washington
Consolidated Endowment Fund
Foreign Currency Risk

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Foreign Currency

E.M.U.-Euro
China-Renminbi
India-Rupee
Japan-Yen
Brazil-Real
Russia-Ruble
Britain-Pound
Hong Kong-Dollar
South Korea-Won
Canada-Dollar
Switzerland-Franc
Taiwan-Dollar
Philippines-Peso
Indonesia-Rupiah
Remaining currencies

Total

Amount

$ 156,509
126,848
100,451

65,017
56,611
56,517
54,281
50,663
49,150
41,888
39,900
30,894
18,974
14,732
166,883

$1,029,318

7. Derivatives

The University’s investment policies allow investing in
various derivative instruments, including futures, swaps,
and forwards, to manage exposures within or across the
portfolio and to improve the portfolio’s risk/return
profile. Futures are financial contracts obligating the
buyer to purchase an asset at a predetermined future date
and price. Total return swaps involve commitments to
pay interest in exchange for a market linked return, both
based on notional amounts. Derivative instruments atre
recorded on the contract date and are carried at fair value

using listed price quotations or amounts that
approximate fair value.

Credit exposute represents exposure to counterparties
relating to financial instruments where gains exceed
collateral held by the University or losses ate less than the
collateral posted by the University. There was no credit
exposure as of June 30, 2014. The University had no
hedging derivatives, only derivatives for investment
purposes.

Details on foreign currency derivatives are disclosed under
Foreign Currency Risk.

The following schedule presents the significant terms for derivatives held as investments by the University:

University of Washington
Derivative Investments
June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Changes in Fair
Value - Included in Fair Value -

Investment Investment
Income (Loss) Derivative
Category Amount Amount Notional
Futures contracts S 766 S 18,815 S 18,049

8. Reverse Repurchase Agreements - None.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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F. INVESTMENTS - OFFICE OF THE STATE
TREASURER CASH MANAGEMENT ACCOUNT

1. Summary of Investment Policies

The Office of the State Treasurer (OST) operates the
state’s Cash Management Account for investing
Treasury/Trust Funds in excess of daily requirements.

The overall objective of the OST investment policy is to
construct, from eligible investments noted below, an
investment portfolio that is optimal or efficient. An
optimal or efficient portfolio is one that provides the
greatest expected return for a given expected level of risk,
or the lowest expected risk for a given expected return.

The emphasis on “expected” is to recognize that
investment decisions are made under conditions of risk
and uncertainty. Neither the actual risk nor return of any
investment decision is known with certainty at the time the
decision is made.

Eligible Investments. Eligible investments are only those
securities and deposits authorized by statute (chapters
39.58, 39.59, 43.250, and 43.84.080 RCW). Eligible

investments include:
e Obligations of the U.S. government.

e Obligations of U.S. government agencies or of
corporations wholly owned by the U.S. government.

e Obligations of government-sponsored enterprises that
are or may become eligible as collateral for advances to
member banks as determined by the board of
governors of the Federal Reserve.

e Banker’s acceptances purchased on the secondary
market rated with the highest short-term credit rating
of any two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating
Organizations (NRSROs) at the time of purchase. If
the banker’s acceptance is rated by more than two
NRSROs, it must have the highest rating from all of
the organizations.

e Commercial paper provided that the OST adheres to
policies and procedures of the Washington State
Investment Board regarding commercial paper (RCW
43.84.080(7)).

e Certificates of deposit with financial institutions
qualified by the Washington Public Deposit Protection

Commission.

¢ Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).
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e Obligations of the state of Washington or its political
subdivisions.

Investment Restrictions. To provide for the safety and
liquidity of Tteasury/Trust Funds, the Cash Management
Account investment portfolio is subject to the following
restrictions:

e The final maturity of any security will not exceed ten
years.

e Purchase of collateralized mortgage obligations is not
allowed.

e The allocation to investments subject to high price
sensitivity or reduced marketability will not exceed 15
percent of the daily balance of the portfolio.

Additionally, investments in non-government securities,
excluding collateral of repurchase agreements, must fall
within prescribed limits.

2. Securities Lending

State statutes permit the OST to lend its securities to
broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous
agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in
the future. The OST has contracted with Citibank, N.A. as
a lending agent and receives a share of income earned
from this activity. The lending agent lends securities and
receives collateral, which can be in the form of cash or
other securities. The collateral, which must be valued at
102 percent of the fair value of the loaned securities, is
priced daily and, if necessary, action is taken to maintain
the collateralization level at 102 percent.

The cash is invested by the lending agent in accordance
with investment guidelines approved by the OST. The
securities held as collateral and the securities underlying the
cash collateral are held by the custodian. One option
available to the lending agent is to invest cash collateral
into an OST account in the LGIP. At June 30, 2014, cash
collateral totaled $152.7 million, all of which was invested
in the LGIP.

Contracts require the lending agent to indemnify the OST
if the borrowers fail to return securities and if the collateral
is inadequate to replace the securities lent, or if the
borrower fails to pay the OST for income distribution by
the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. The
OST cannot pledge or sell collateral securities received
unless the borrower defaults. At June 30, 2014, the fair
value of securities on loan totaled $149.1 million.

The OST investment policy requires that any securities on
loan be made available by the lending agent for next day
liquidity at the option of the OST. During fiscal year 2014,
the OST had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because
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the amounts owed to the borrowers exceeded the amounts
the borrowers owed the OST.

There were no violations of legal or contractual provisions
or any losses resulting from a default of a borrower or
lending agent during the fiscal year.

3. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of
debt instruments will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Treasury/Trust investments are sepatated

into portfolios with objectives based primarily on liquidity
needs.

The OST’s investment policy limits the weighted average
maturity of its investments based on cash flow
expectations. Policy also directs due diligence to be
exercised with timely reporting of material deviation from
expectations and actions taken to control adverse
developments as may be possible.

The following schedule presents the OST investments and related maturities, and provides information about the associated

interest rate risks as of June 30, 2014:

Office of the State Treasurer (OST)
Cash Management Account

June 30, 2014

(expressed in thousands)

Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 Year 1-5 Years
U.S. agency obligations S 2,122,490 S 421,760 S 1,700,730
U.S. government obligations 956,999 55,794 901,205
Certificates of deposit 165,000 165,000 -
Investments with LGIP 2,024,072 2,024,072 -
Interest bearing bank accounts 180,929 180,929 -
Total $ 5,449,490 $ 2,847,555 $ 2,601,935

4. Credit Risk

The OST limits credit risk by adhering to the OST
investment policy which restricts the types of investments
the OST can participate in, such as: U.S. government and
agency securities, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper,
and deposits with qualified public depositaries.

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for
investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the
counterparty, a government will not be able to recover the
value of the investment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The OST investment
policy requires that securities purchased by the office be
held by the master custodian, acting as an independent
third party, in its safekeeping or trust department.
Securities utilized in repurchase agreements are subject to
additional restrictions. These restrictions are designed to
limit the OST’s exposure to risk and insure the safety of
the investment.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit
risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. For non-
governmental securities, the OST limits its exposure to
concentration of credit risk by restricting the amount of
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investments to no more than 5 percent of the portfolio to
any single issuer. During fiscal year 2014, the OST did not
own any non-governmental securities subject to this
restriction.

5. Foreign Currency Risk - None.

6. Derivatives - None.

7. Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase
Agreements

The fair value plus accrued income of mortgage-backed
securities utilized in repurchase agreements with more than
seven days remaining until maturity will be 105 percent of
the value of the repurchase agreement.

Treasury, agency, and money market securities will be
priced at 102 percent of fair value plus accrued income,
except where the counterparty is the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York, in which case they will be priced at 100
petrcent of market value plus accrued income.

The securities utilized in repurchase agreements with a

maturity date longer than seven days are priced at least
weekly and are held by the Treasury/Trust custodian in the
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state’s name. Collateralized mortgage obligations utilized in
repurchase agreements must pass the Federal Financial
Institutions Examination Council test or not exceed a
volatility rating of V-5 by Fitch Investor Services, or a
similar rating of a nationally recognized rating agency.
There were no repurchase agreements as of June 30, 2014.

State law also permits the OST to enter into reverse
repurchase agreements, which are, by contract, sales of
securities with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
them in the future at the same price plus a contract rate of
interest. The fair value of the securities pledged as
collateral by the OST underlying the reverse repurchase
agreements normally exceeds the cash received, providing
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the dealers a margin against a decline in the fair value of
the securities.

If the dealers default on their obligations to resell these
securities to the OST or to provide equal value in securities
or cash, the OST would suffer an economic loss equal to
the differences between the fair value plus accrued interest
of the underlying securities and the agreement obligation,
including accrued interest. The OST investment policy
limits the amount of reverse repurchase agreements to 30
percent of the total portfolio. There were no reverse
repurchase agreements during fiscal year 2014.
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State of Washington

Receivables, Unearned and Unavailable Revenues

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Taxes Receivable
Taxes receivable at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Nonmajor
Higher Education Higher Education Governmental

Taxes Receivable General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total
Property S 1,011,340 S - S - S 216 S 1,011,556
Sales 1,588,122 - - - 1,588,122
Business and occupation 574,684 - - - 574,684
Estate 1,004 18,602 - - 19,606
Fuel - - - 121,007 121,007
Liquor - - - 5,004 5,004
Other 23,406 306 - 272 23,984

Subtotals 3,198,556 18,908 - 126,499 3,343,963
Less: Allowance for

uncollectible receivables 43,774 - - 423 44,197
Total Taxes Receivable S 3,154,782 S 18,908 S - S 126,076 S 3,299,766

Other Receivables
Other receivables at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Nonmajor
Higher Education Higher Education = Governmental

Other Receivables General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total
Public assistance S 772,908 S - S - $ - $ 772,908
Accounts receivable 132,417 764,427 1,000 201,260 1,099,104
Interest 61 6,921 4,826 2,552 14,360
Investment trades pending 25,288 1,010 - 20,169 46,467
Loans ? 6,269 134,155 - 454,974 595,398
Long-term contracts 2,221 - 20,636 93,898 116,755
Miscellaneous 18,222 98,684 8,130 189,805 314,841

Subtotals 957,386 1,005,197 34,592 962,658 2,959,833
Less: Allowance for

uncollectible receivables 762,110 29,506 27 65,573 857,216
Total Other Receivables S 195,276 S 975,691 S 34,565 S 897,085 S 2,102,617
Notes:

) public assistance receivables mainly represent amounts owed the state as a part of the Support Enforcement Program at the
Department of Social and Health Services for the amounts due from persons required to pay support for individuals currently on
state assistance, and have a low realization expectation. Accordingly, the receivable is offset by a large allowance for uncollectible
receivables.

2 Significant long-term portions of loans receivable include $97.4 million in the Higher Education Special Revenue Fund for student
loans and $443.8 million in Nonmajor Governmental Fundsfor low income housing, public works, and economic
development/revitalization loans.

& Long-term contracts in Nonmajor Governmental Funds are for timber sales contracts.
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Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Nonmajor
Higher Education Higher Education  Governmental

Unearned Revenue General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total

Other taxes S 1,566 S - S - S - S 1,566
Charges for services 49,504 201,251 582 26,620 277,957
Child support 19,745 - - - 19,745
Donable goods - - - 8,086 8,086
Grants and donations 8,786 1,317 - 3,371 13,474
Prepaid tolls - - - 13,057 13,057
Seizure of forfeited assets - - - 3,453 3,453
Miscellaneous 4,039 9,406 - 19,413 32,858
Total Unearned Revenue S 83,640 S 211,974 S 582 S 74,000 S 370,196

Unavailable Revenue
Unavailable revenue at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Nonmajor
Higher Education Higher Education = Governmental

Unavailable Revenue General Special Revenue Endowment Funds Total
Property taxes S 988,137 S - S - S 112 S 988,249
Other taxes 407,406 14,326 - 202 421,934
Timber sales 2,221 - 20,636 93,898 116,755
Charges for services 18,675 - - 1,504 20,179
Loan programs - - - 861,903 861,903
Miscellaneous 5,109 - - 44,214 49,323
Total Unavailable Revenue S 1,421,548 S 14,326 S 20,636 $ 1,001,833 S 2,458,343
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B. PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Other Receivables

State of Washington

Other receivables at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Guaranteed
Workers' Unemployment Higher Education Education Nonmajor Internal
Other Receivables Compensation ~ Compensation Student Services Tuition Program Enterprise Funds Total Service Funds
Accounts receivable S 767,794 S 826,479 S 257,994 S 55,004 S 24,440 1,931,711 S 12,200
Financing reimbursement - - - - - - 19,025
Interest 106,896 - 9,140 6,327 - 122,363 11
Investment trades pending 41,221 - - 582 - 41,803 4,919
Miscellaneous 10,269 - 13,192 - 6 23,467 2,224
Subtotals 926,180 826,479 280,326 61,913 24,446 2,119,344 38,379
Less: Allowance for
uncollectible receivables 143,874 186,227 72,966 - 224 403,291 484
Total Other Receivables S 782,306 S 640,252 S 207,360 S 61,913 S 24,222 $ 1,716,053 S 37,895
Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):
Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Guaranteed
Workers' Unemployment Higher Education Education Nonmajor Internal
Unearned Revenue Compensation Compensation  Student Services Tuition Program Enterprise Funds Total Service Funds
Charges for services S - S - S 52,976 S - S - S 52,976 S 1,311
Federal assistance 6,182 - - - - S 6,182 -
Other taxes 154 - - - - 154 -
Miscellaneous 384 - 3,276 - 613 4,273 82
Total Unearned Revenue S 6,720 S - S 56,252 S - S 613 S 63,585 S 1,393

C. FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Other Receivables

Other receivables at June 30, 2014, consisted of $6.2 million for interest and other miscellaneous amounts.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue at June 30, 2014, consisted of $310 thousand for service credit restorations reported in Pension and
Other Employee Benefit Plans.
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State of Washington

Interfund Balances and Transfers

A. INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund balances as reported in the financial statements at June 30, 2014, consisted of the following (expressed in
thousands):

Due From
Higher
Education Higher Nonmajor
Special Education Governmental Workers'
Due To General Revenue Endowment Funds Compensation

General S - S 51,715 S - $ 153,703 S 243
Higher Education Special Revenue 50,484 - - 320,194 298
Higher Education Endowment - - - 6 -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 190,544 758 2,561 197,644 52
Workers' Compensation 1,289 - - 5 -
Unemployment Compensation 1,378 1,951 - 846 81
Higher Education Student Services 796 1,050 - 1,216 220
Guaranteed Education Tuition Program 1 - - - -
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 6,283 60 - 638 18
Internal Service Funds 22,119 1,037 - 21,916 5,386
Fiduciary Funds - - - - -
Totals S 272,894 S 56,571 S 2,561 S 696,168 S 6,298

Nearly all interfund balances are expected to be paid within one year from the date of the financial statements. These balances
resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services were provided and when the payments occurred
and (2) interfund transfers were accrued and when the liquidations occurred. Interfund balances include: (1) a $19.6 million loan from
a nonmajor governmental fund to the General Fund which is expected to be paid over the next six years; and (2) a $7.2 million loan
between nonmajor governmental funds which is expected to be paid over the next eight years.

In addition to the interfund balances noted in the schedule above, there are interfund balances of $7.1 million within the state’s
Pension Trust Funds.
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Due From
Higher
Education Guaranteed Nonmajor Internal
Unemployment Student Education Enterprise Service Fiduciary
Compensation Services Tuition Program Funds Funds Funds Totals
S 8 S 4 S 118 S 17,245 S 406 S - S 223,442
1 470,428 1 282 74,108 68 915,864
- - - - - - 6
17,047 7 3 65 1,498 - 410,179
- - - - - - 1,294
- 37 - 17 31 - 4,341
- - - - 76 - 3,358
- - - - - - 1
7 22 7 402 479 2 7,918
- 111 10 318 31,850 - 82,747
S 17,063 S 470,609 S 139 S 18,329 S 108,448 S 70 S 1,649,150
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B. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

State of Washington

Interfund transfers as reported in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, consisted of the following

(expressed in thousands):

Transferred From

General

Higher Education Special Revenue
Higher Education Endowment
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Workers' Compensation
Unemployment Compensation
Higher Education Student Services
Guaranteed Education Tuition Program
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Internal Service Funds

Totals

Transferred To

Higher
Education Higher Nonmajor
Special Education Governmental Workers'
General Revenue Endowment Funds Compensation

- S - S - $ 950,452 S -
59,588 - 527,133 133,490 -
- 633,936 - 34,370 -
323,617 212,587 1,121 988,092 -
- 322,498 - 3,520 -
129,017 10,050 - 11,107 -
5,778 9,946 - - -
518,000 S 1,189,017 S 528,254 S 2,121,031 S -

Except as noted below, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fund that
statute requires to expend them, (2) move receipts designated for debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service
fund as debt service payments become due, (3) move unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, (4) move profits from the Lottery Fund as required by law,
and (5) transfer amounts to and from the General Fund as required by law.

On June 30, 2014, $144.5 million was transferred from the General Fund Basic Account to the Budget Stabilization Account (BSA) in
accordance with the provisions of the Constitution. The BSA is reported as an Administrative Account within the General Fund. The
Constitution details a limited number of circumstances under which funds can be appropriated from the BSA, one of which is a

favorable vote of at least three-fifths of the members of each house of the Legislature.

In addition to the transfers noted in the schedule above, there were transfers of $4.8 million within the state’s Pension Trust Funds.
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Transferred To

Higher
Education Guaranteed Nonmajor Internal
Unemployment Student Education Enterprise Service
Compensation Services Tuition Program Funds Funds Totals
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 14521 $ 964,973
- 382,319 - - 10,842 1,113,372
- 3 - - - 668,309
- 312 - - 1,503 1,527,232
- - - - 277 326,295
- - - 12,151 - 162,325
- 36 - - 17,259 33,019
S - S 382,670 S - S 12,151 S 44,402 S 4,795,525
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State of Washington

Capital Assets

Capital assets at June 30, 2014, are reported by the state of Washington within Governmental Activities and Business-

Type Activities, as applicable.

A. GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 (expressed in

thousands):

Capital Assets

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Transportation infrastructure
Intangible assets - indefinite lives
Art collections, library reserves, and
museum and historical collections
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Accumulated depreciation

Net buildings

Other improvements
Accumulated depreciation

Net other improvements

Furnish